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          2                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER: Good afternoon

          3  and welcome today.  The Committee on Youth Services

          4  has a very full agenda.  Firstly, we will hear

          5  testimony regarding facility's fees for after-school

          6  programs.  We will also consider proposed Resolution

          7  No. 1218-A, sponsored by Council Member Martinez,

          8  which calls upon the New York City Department of

          9  Education to maximize the use of school facility

         10  space during non-school hours for community

         11  programs, tutoring, and enrichment activities, and

         12  to allow the use of such facilities for such

         13  purposes without charging facilities fees.

         14                 As you know, organizations that

         15  operate after-school programs in public schools are

         16  assessed certain costs for utilizing school

         17  facilities.  Such costs may include opening fees,

         18  which cover custodial services and operating

         19  expenses, as well as security and fingerprinting of

         20  staff.  These costs may also include other

         21  categories.  Although it is unclear, exactly, what

         22  the term "facility cost" constitutes, the term seems

         23  to vary depending on the program, and even the

         24  particular school in which a program is located.

         25                 It is also unclear whether or not DOE
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          2  or DYCD use a particular formula to determine such

          3  costs for each CBO.  And if so, whether such formula

          4  is applied uniformly.

          5                 Today we are seeking clarity from DOE

          6  and DYCD, regarding the practice of assessing

          7  facilities fees.

          8                 This is not the first time that this

          9  Committee has addressed this issue.  At previous

         10  hearings I have called on DOE to cease charging the

         11  $50,000 fee per year for the Beacon School Program.

         12  The Council included $4 million in the Fiscal 2006

         13  Adopted Budget to cover these costs.

         14                 Recently, as part of the Out- of-

         15  School- Time Initiative DOE has agreed to cover

         16  facilities costs for OST programs that operate in

         17  DOE facilities.  However, providers that are not

         18  part of either the Beacon Program or OST, continue

         19  to be responsible for charges for the use of DOE

         20  facilities.  DOE and DYCD should review their

         21  policies regarding the assessment of facilities

         22  fees.  Any funding that is allocated towards these

         23  fees, means less funding is going to provide direct

         24  services for our City's youth.

         25                 Before I call upon Council Member
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          2  Martinez, who is the principle sponsor of Proposed

          3  Resolution No. 1218- A for some comments on this

          4  issue, let me introduce the Council members who are

          5  here.  In addition to Council Member Martinez, we

          6  have Council members Gallagher and Felder.  I also

          7  want to point out that this hearing is bifurcated,

          8  in that we will also be taking up Proposed Intro.

          9  737- A, calling upon the City to create an

         10  ombudsman's office for runaway and homeless youth.

         11  So we are going to try to be somewhat efficient in

         12  our time use today, so that we do not have to run

         13  into evenings and have to charge a facilities fee

         14  for being here after six.

         15                 Council Member Martinez.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ:  Thank you,

         17  Mr. Chair.  I want to thank you and Committee

         18  Counsel for working with my office in putting this

         19  resolution together.  And the objective here is for

         20  our communities to maximize the use of our schools'

         21  facilities in our communities.  And as you mentioned

         22  in your opening statement, there is a lot of

         23  confusion in terms of the different fees that are

         24  charged by the Department of Education, whether they

         25  are programs from three to six, which we believe
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          2  they are exempt, or programs that after six, or

          3  programs that run during vacation time or holidays.

          4                 The same is true that looking at the

          5  formula used by the Department of Education, where

          6  we find facilities that are already being used and

          7  we have community organizations that may want to

          8  come into these buildings, we find sort of like a

          9  double dipping scenario happening.  When the school

         10  facilities are being used already by another

         11  organization and the doors are open.  And the

         12  objective is how do we maximize the use of these

         13  facilities. In many communities, such as the one I

         14  represent, that lacks many cultural centers and

         15  institutions that other communities have and, the

         16  only thing we have are those school buildings, that

         17  many times are closed, to provide these essential

         18  services for our youth and our ongoing adult

         19  education sometimes.

         20                 Again, I want to thank you.  And I

         21  will have several questions after I hear testimony

         22  from both the Department of Youth Services and the

         23  Department of Education as to the formula used, and

         24  how it applies to different programs and not to

         25  others.
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          2                 Thank you, Mr. Chair, again, and the

          3  Counsel for working with my office in putting this

          4  Resolution together.  And hopefully, at the end of

          5  this hearing, we will have some clarity as to how we

          6  can go forward in making the school facilities in

          7  our communities available for groups that are

          8  providing essential services for our youth.

          9                 Thank you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER:  Lights out.

         11  Thank you Council Member Martinez, and especially

         12  for your leadership on this issue as well.  We have

         13  been joined by Council Members Vann and Arroyo as

         14  well.  Our first panel is from DOE, Bruce Feig and

         15  Sandy Brawer. And the lights go back on.  And from

         16  DYCD, we have Bill Chong and Mario Bruno.

         17                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CHONG:  Good

         18  afternoon.  My name is Bill Chong and I am Deputy

         19  Commissioner of Youth Services at the New York City

         20  Department of Youth and Community Development.  I am

         21  joined to my right by Mario Bruno, Assistant

         22  Commissioner for After- School Programs.  I want to

         23  thank you for the opportunity to address the issue

         24  of additional costs related to the operation of

         25  after- school programs.
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          2                 DYCD currently contracts with

          3  approximately 1,400 organizations to deliver

          4  programs in areas such as Out- of- School Time,

          5  Beacon Schools, Workforce Investment Act, Summer

          6  Youth Employment, Neighborhood Development,

          7  Literacy, Immigrant Services, Fatherhood Initiative,

          8  HIV Permanency Planning, Violence Intervention and

          9  Prevention, and Runaway and Homeless Youth.  These

         10  programs are offered in community centers, public

         11  facilities, and privately- owned spaces throughout

         12  the five boroughs.

         13                 To ensure more coordinated and

         14  efficient delivery of services to City residents,

         15  this Administration encourages collaboration among

         16  City agencies.  A prime example of such

         17  collaboration at DYCD, is the comprehensive Out- of-

         18  School Time Program that started this past

         19  September.

         20                 As we have testified before, the

         21  design and implementation of OST involved multiple

         22  City agencies, including the Department of

         23  Education, New York City Housing Authority, the

         24  Department of Parks and Recreation, the

         25  Administration for Children's Services, the
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          2  Department of Cultural Affairs, the Department of

          3  Health and Mental Hygiene, and the City's three

          4  public library systems.

          5                 Most relevant to this hearing on

          6  facilities costs, are the DYCD agreements with DOE,

          7  the New York City Housing Authority, and Parks for

          8  use of their facilities by OST programs. Each agency

          9  made certain sites available for OST programs at no

         10  cost to the providers.  Prospective providers were

         11  encouraged to select such sites for their programs,

         12  so as to locate programs in high- need areas

         13  throughout the City and to focus on DYCD funds on

         14  direct services.

         15                 As a result of these interagency

         16  efforts, over 60 percent of OST providers chose to

         17  locate their programs in public facilities, with 322

         18  programs at Department of Education sites, 32 at

         19  Public Housing sites, and 13 at Parks sites.

         20                 Aside from the OST program, the

         21  Fiscal Year 2006 Adopted Budget included additional

         22  funds allocated by the City Council, to the Beacon

         23  Schools to cover the facilities cost at DOE sites.

         24  As a result, Beacon School providers each received a

         25  $50,000 increase for direct services.
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          2                 More than 400 DYCD programs benefited

          3  from these collaborate efforts initiated this year.

          4  DYCD is pleased to report these results and will

          5  continue to explore strategies with the Department

          6  of Education, as well as other City agencies, that

          7  would minimize facility costs for providers.

          8                 Thank you, again, for this

          9  opportunity to discuss costs associated with

         10  operating after- school programs.  We would be

         11  pleased to answer any questions that you may have.

         12                 MR. FEIG:  Good afternoon, Chair

         13  Fidler and members of the Youth Committee.  My name

         14  is Bruce Feig, and I am the Chief Financial Officer

         15  for the New York City Department of Education. And

         16  on my left is Sandy Brawer who is our Regional

         17  Operations Center Executive Director for our

         18  Brooklyn Region.  I am pleased to explain the costs

         19  involved in the extended use of public school

         20  buildings.

         21                 School buildings are a staple of

         22  neighborhoods across the City, and they serve many

         23  community purposes.  Whether for after- school

         24  programs, neighborhood sports leagues, voting, or

         25  weekend fairs, school buildings are an ideal site
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          2  for a variety of activities.  The Children First

          3  agenda encourages their use for appropriate

          4  extracurricular and community events.

          5                 Department of Education facilities

          6  must be well maintained, clean, and safe for the

          7  children we serve.  To that end, our custodial force

          8  works diligently to ensure our buildings are in good

          9  condition.  The Department does not imposed charges

         10  for the use of school buildings when school is not

         11  in session. However, there are pass- along costs

         12  that are imposed upon us by the custodial contract.

         13  These contractual costs for extended use of

         14  buildings beyond school hours cover maintenance.

         15  Additionally, there is a 15 percent charge for

         16  pension and health plan costs incurred by having the

         17  custodians work overtime.

         18                 Prior to the DOE's reorganization,

         19  the manner by which these pass- along custodial

         20  costs were paid was random and inconsistent at best,

         21  unfair and inequitable at worst.  Some organizations

         22  were able to avoid paying while others were required

         23  to, with no clear set of criteria.  This

         24  Administration recognized this imbalance and

         25  instituted a uniform policy to be applied
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          2  consistently across the system.  Costs must now be

          3  paid by all organizations, such as unions,

          4  community- based organizations, and other government

          5  entities that conduct an allowable activity that was

          6  not engaged by the school or by the DOE.  The

          7  Department of Education pays the costs for

          8  authorized activities conducted on behalf of, or in

          9  partnership with, the school.  Examples of such

         10  activities are parent meetings or forums, Community

         11  Education Council meetings, or meetings of school

         12  clubs or teams.

         13                 Organizations are charged the actual

         14  contractual cost for custodial and security

         15  services.  The Department of Education does not

         16  generate revenue from extended use.  The Custodial

         17  Payroll System calculates the costs, which takes

         18  into account the amount of space being used, the

         19  nature of the space, and the time of the use.

         20  Security services are billed to organizations for

         21  the actual cost of School Safety Agents, and is

         22  based on the number of agents needed.  Organizations

         23  are permitted to provide their own security, pending

         24  approval from the Department.

         25                 In order to utilize a school
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          2  building, an organization must complete a permit

          3  applications, check with the custodian on the space

          4  availability, and obtain approval from the

          5  Principal.  Then, the applications must be submitted

          6  to the appropriate Regional Operations Center for

          7  cost calculation.  A permit is then issued when the

          8  applications is approved by the Regional Operations

          9  Center, and the costs are paid as the custodians

         10  incur the costs.

         11                 Many have suggested that the

         12  Department waive these costs.  Unfortunately, the

         13  costs cannot be waived, they must be borne by

         14  someone.  While we are sympathetic that these costs

         15  imposed a burden on some smaller organizations,

         16  budget realities constrained the Department and

         17  force us to make difficult decisions.  The

         18  Department's priorities are first and foremost

         19  instructional.  To absorb costs for organizations

         20  for the extracurricular use of school buildings

         21  would mean directing money away from our

         22  programmatic areas.  Our instructional programs are

         23  designed to improve the academic achievement of our

         24  students, and this is our obligation and mission.

         25                 Thank you and I will be happy to
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          2  answer questions.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER:  I am just going

          4  to ask one before I allow Councilman Martinez to

          5  jump out of his chair.  You described a rather,

          6  extensive process by which you determine who has to

          7  pay what and who gets a permit.  I am just wondering

          8  whether or not you can assess a cost figure to how

          9  much the process itself costs the Department of

         10  Education?  Whether or not we might not well save

         11  money by eliminating the process and just allowing

         12  people to have access to the school buildings.

         13                 MR. FEIG:  Yes, it is a good

         14  question.  We have not done that, but obviously

         15  there is some time involved in it.  You know, we

         16  have our Regional Operations Center staff that have

         17  to process these applications, maintain a relatively

         18  simple computer system to calculate it.  But then

         19  there is back and forth communication.  So, there is

         20  a cost.  I would not want to put a guesstimate on

         21  what it is.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER:  Well, I guess, I

         23  will just follow- up on that.  Are there people

         24  whose job it is, exclusively, to deal with this

         25  process?
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          2                 MR. FEIG:  No, there are staff that

          3  work in our Regional Operations Center who take on

          4  this function with a multitude of other functions

          5  that they have perform.  You know, the workload is

          6  not steady through the year.  It happens, the

          7  beginning of a semester is when things are getting

          8  organized.  So it is a little more then, and so

          9  these folks are not dedicated to this function.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER:  Can you take a

         11  ballpark stab at the cost to the DOE of the

         12  application process?

         13                 MR. FEIG:  Sandy, how much staff you

         14  spend on it?

         15                 MR. BRAWER:  Maybe about 20 staff

         16  members, but one has to remember part of the job

         17  that they are doing while we have a permit system,

         18  is because we have to pay the custodians.  So this

         19  is part of the custodian payment that is required by

         20  the contract. To just not allow the activity to

         21  happen in the school, the process for custodian

         22  payroll still has to happen.

         23                 It is partially the permits in terms

         24  of making sure that we rent space, and that people

         25  do not rent the same space twice, and also it has to
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          2  do with paying custodians what they are required to

          3  do for staying.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER:  And you are

          5  saying that you would have to do that anyway,

          6  whether or not you charge that fee on to the CBO?

          7                 MR. BRAWER:  Right, because the

          8  custodians have to get paid.  So, this is just a

          9  little extra on top of that.  So, it is really not a

         10  big cost for doing the permit system back and forth

         11  with the organizations.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER:  Council Member

         13  Martinez.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ:  I just want

         15  to follow- up on your question, Mr. Chair.  So, I

         16  want to follow- up on the Chair's question.  You

         17  mentioned that you have an across- the- board

         18  formula for determining the fees, correct?

         19                 MR. FEIG:  Yes.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ:  But you

         21  just finished saying that it is someone at the

         22  Regional Office that determines the fee.  Is that

         23  what I heard in your response to the Chairman?

         24                 MR. FEIG:  Probably, let me clarify.

         25  When we say across- the- board formula it does not
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          2  mean it is a simple formula. Basically, you know, we

          3  are passing through the charges that we are required

          4  to pay the custodians.  And that has, is driven by

          5  their contract.  And so it varies by, you know, the

          6  size of the school, the number of rooms, the time,

          7  so all of those variables go into calculating an

          8  amount that is charged to an individual or an

          9  organization that is using the school.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ:  Correct,

         11  again, the purpose, if someone is working he/she

         12  should get paid.  I think that that is understood.

         13  However, the difficulty that organizations and

         14  myself are having, for example, understanding the

         15  formula.  Because if I have one custodian or two

         16  custodians, are you paying the custodians based on

         17  the amount of people utilizing the building?  Or are

         18  you paying the custodian based on the hourly rate

         19  for the overtime?

         20                 MR. FEIG:  I will let Sandy jump in.

         21  But we pay based on what we calculate for the

         22  custodian to get.  And then if there is more than

         23  one organization sharing the building, you know, the

         24  sum of what those two pay equal what we pay the

         25  custodian.  So we are not double- dipping, where we
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          2  charge out a custodian's time twice, if there were

          3  two organizations in the school.  I think that is

          4  kind of what you are asking.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ:  Yes, that

          6  is exactly what I am asking.  Because for example if

          7  you have two organizations sharing the building and

          8  you are charging that organization the same amount,

          9  for example, lets say $6,000 each, for using the

         10  facility, after six I am speaking of now.  And you

         11  still have one custodian or two custodians, whether

         12  it is one organization or two, how does that formula

         13  work out?

         14                 MR. FEIG:  Well we then share those

         15  costs.  Sandy can maybe give us an example.

         16                 MR. BRAWER:  We try to do as much as

         17  we possibly can, what we know of, to do what we call

         18  piggybacking, where if one organization is already

         19  using the building, we try to reduce the costs of

         20  the, and this has been the policy for years, in

         21  terms of reducing the costs of the second

         22  organization coming in.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ:  I am glad

         24  you are saying that, because I think that with the

         25  new policy that the Administration has adopted, and
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          2  again, we are not advocating for custodial staff or

          3  security not to get paid for the work that they do.

          4  But what we are noticing is that there seems to be

          5  something missing in terms of the communication,

          6  between the policy that the Administration has

          7  adopted and what is actually happening at the

          8  community level.  Because when you have

          9  organizations that are not piggybacking, not

         10  piggybacking as to what is happening in the

         11  building, or other organizations not paying the same

         12  amount, you know, there is something missing there

         13  because that is not happening.  Organizations are

         14  being charged the same amount, across the board,

         15  whether there are two or three organizations in

         16  there, they each have to pay the same amount, for

         17  the same amount of security, and for the same amount

         18  of custodial staff in the building.  I do not know

         19  if you have gotten that information before.

         20                 MR.  BRAWER:  That may happen on some

         21  occasions. You know, one of the things that we are

         22  doing, it was pretty much a completely manual

         23  system, so tracking 1,000 buildings that you have,

         24  and trying to see what buildings are being used by

         25  what organizations.  We are continually upgrading
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          2  our systems right now, to make it a little better,

          3  so that our system will calculate and do all that.

          4  So it takes the human error out of it.  But we try

          5  to make sure that we modify and balance out the

          6  costs. And we are also putting together a user guide

          7  for CBOs, Rights and Responsibilities, so that they

          8  will be aware of exactly what the charges are, how

          9  the charges get imposed.  And so we are going to be

         10  reaching out to our community.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ:  So, if I am

         12  an organization that is getting monies from the No

         13  Child Left Behind, and I am already in the school

         14  facility, right.  And let's say I am already in the

         15  school facility and I am paying for the use of the

         16  facility.  But now under the No Child Left Behind

         17  monies for after school programs, you are telling me

         18  that I have to deduct four percent for the use of

         19  the facilities.  So isn't that double dipping also,

         20  when I can use that four percent for more programs,

         21  because I am already paying the fee?

         22                 MR. FEIG:  Good point.  The four

         23  percent, by and large, is going into effect next

         24  year.  Most of the providers were given waivers

         25  against the four percent.  But we would have to
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          2  calculate, that would be a calculation.  We are not

          3  looking to make any money on this.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ:  No, no, no,

          5  no one- -

          6                 MR. FEIG:  You raise a good point.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ:  But let me

          8  interrupt you. What we are trying to establish here

          9  is that, we are not saying DOE is trying to make

         10  money, or not pay custodial, or security staff. What

         11  we want to establish is that with some of the monies

         12  and fees, we could do more programs.   And maybe

         13  even some organizations that are not as large as the

         14  ones that are in the school already, to have an

         15  opportunity to use the facilities.  It is not about

         16  DOE making money.  It is about how do we make the

         17  school more accessible to some of the smaller

         18  groups, and the bigger groups save some money for

         19  more programs.  So, you were going to say about the-

         20   -

         21                 MR. FEIG:  You raise a good point.

         22  The four percent fee, you get into these structural

         23  issues, is a reduction to our Title One funding,

         24  which supports these SES programs.  And it does go

         25  to offset, well actually let me, now that I think
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          2  about it let me change it.  The four percent that we

          3  are charging on the SES programs, is not the

          4  extended use fees.  Let me just clarify.  The fees

          5  for the SES programs, if they incur a custodian fee,

          6  they are paying it.  And that would shared through

          7  the same process as everyone else.

          8                 The four percent that we will be

          9  charging many of these companies, and are charging a

         10  few this year, is for the cost of the building

         11  themselves, which we do not charge to groups that

         12  utilize our facilities, so the heat, the light, and

         13  the amortization on the building, that is what the

         14  percentage on the SES deduction is for.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ:  That is not

         16  for salaries, in other words?

         17                 MR. FEIG:  It is not for the extended

         18  fees.  It is not for the custodian pass-throughs.

         19  It is for the bricks and mortar and physical

         20  structure.  And to be honest, we provide that free

         21  to any group that is using our building after

         22  school.  We just charge the custodian pass-through

         23  costs.  So it would not be available this year,

         24  because we are already not charging those after-

         25  school programs that amount.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ:   So where

          3  are you getting the monies from DYCD, is DYCD paying

          4  the Department of Education when they waive for the

          5  Out- of- School money?

          6                 MR. FEIG:  Okay there is a couple of

          7  different pots of money.  Out- of- School Program is

          8  the transition for what had been our program for the

          9  After- School Corporation.  We have about $7.5

         10  million in our budget, which support the activities

         11  around the TASC Programs.  That money became the

         12  basis for the OST programs this year.  And it is

         13  that same $7.5 million, you know, which pays the

         14  extended use fees.  It is the same level of budget

         15  support that was in in the past.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER:  I have to jump

         17  in, because the OST program is far more extensive

         18  than the TASC Initiative.  So, you know, do you want

         19  to clarify that?

         20                 MR. FEIG:  Well, I can go back and

         21  look at it.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER:  And I mean, TASC

         23  was, you know, seven million dollars, OST is $65

         24  million.

         25                 MR. FEIG:  Yes, and all we are
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          2  contributing is the $7.5 million.  You know, we are

          3  not paying for the salaries or the direct support

          4  for the services.  The costs we cover in the $7.5

          5  million are snacks for the students, you know, it is

          6  the extended use fees where they apply, security.

          7  It is kind of the building related issues that are

          8  balance to the, I am not familiar with the number,

          9  would be for the actual services, and that is

         10  supported, you know, through my colleagues budget

         11                 And actually, we post on our Web

         12  site, you know, the allocation.  But it is for, I

         13  would not call it incidentals, but it is not for

         14  direct service.  It is for what is associated with

         15  being in the physical location, you know, whether it

         16  is the pass through custodian costs, the security,

         17  the snacks, you know, those issues.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER:  I will throw it

         19  back to Council Member Martinez, but, you know,

         20  there are far, far more locations than DOE

         21  facilities under OST then there were under TASC.

         22  Far more, so somehow the numbers are not jiving

         23  here.  And I guess I will give a chance to go back

         24  to figure that out.  But you know, if you are

         25  talking about school facility fees and that piece of
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          2  the costs, you know, TASC ran X number of programs,

          3  and OST, and then TASC did not go away.  And then

          4  OST is like some geometric, you know, three times

          5  that, five times that.  OST took over a lot of the

          6  YDDP funding, so it is a whole different, maybe your

          7  colleagues in DYCD can fill in that hole there.

          8                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CHONG:  Well I

          9  can only speak to OST, that we have 322 programs in

         10  schools.  And how that compares to previous TASC, I

         11  do not- -

         12                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER:  Well how many

         13  TASC programs were there in the schools, Mr. Chong?

         14  I mean.

         15                 MR. FEIG:  We supported, I think it

         16  was 440 or so between the OST and the TASC.  Those

         17  are the number of programs that we are supporting.

         18  But again, it is for the security, the snacks, the

         19  fingerprinting, the extended use, those kind of

         20  incidental expenditures.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER:  Right, not for

         22  the programs themselves.  But if I was, maybe, did I

         23  misunderstand what you were saying.  You were saying

         24  that, you know, the TASC school facility money is

         25  what was rolled over and that is what you are paying
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          2  now.

          3                 MR. FEIG:  Yes, that is what I said.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER:  But OST is far,

          5  I mean there are 300 additional OST sites beyond the

          6  TASC sites.  Where is the money coming from for

          7  that?

          8                 MR. FEIG:  Sandy, how many TASC sites

          9  did we have last year?  It is the same $7.5 million,

         10  I just want my numbers. And out of that the extended

         11  use piece of that is less than a million.  I am not

         12  familiar with how many TASC sites we have, but you

         13  know, in our budget that same $7.5 million is

         14  available for the OST programs that have been

         15  available for the TASC programs.  And one of the

         16  things that we did do this year, is to give the TASC

         17  programs, kind of a years worth of grace.  So, the

         18  ones that were not selected as OST providers, you

         19  know, we continued to fund, you know, their fees for

         20  this year, so that they can transition to next year.

         21                 So there is a little bit of a double

         22  funding going on this year.  And some of those, as I

         23  understand, the programs are still wrapping up, so

         24  we have got a little bit of a delay in funding on

         25  both sides.  So that should kind of wash.  And then
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          2  that $7.5 million, the budget stays the same next

          3  year, and we continue.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ:  Thank you,

          5  Mr. Chair.  I want to go back, when you mentioned

          6  that you charge the fee based on, you know, whatever

          7  labor requirement based on overtime, and so forth,

          8  is that the same fee for profit and none profit?

          9                 MR. FEIG:  Yes.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ:  Did I hear

         11  you right when you told the Chairman, you did not

         12  have the formula as to how you come up with the

         13  fees, the total?

         14                 MR. FEIG:  I am sorry.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ:  In other

         16  words, the square footage, do you charge by square

         17  footage, or the use of space in the facility?  How

         18  do you calculate?

         19                 MR. FEIG:  Let me defer to Sandy,

         20  because he is a little closer to the leads on this

         21  one.

         22                 MR. BRAWER:  We do have a formula.

         23  It is the same, the formula is derived from what is

         24  in the Custodial Contract, what they are required to

         25  get paid.  Just as a, I do not want to get into too
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          2  much detail, simple as that.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ:  We like

          4  details.

          5                 MR. BRAWER:  I know.  But if you use

          6  the building for let's say, six to eight, okay, they

          7  pay a certain rate for opening fee, that covers up

          8  to two hours.  If you go beyond there, there is a

          9  rate for each additional hour.  It covers 15

         10  classrooms, depending upon the size of the building.

         11    Again, this is all in the Custodial Contract, so I

         12  am not saying anything that we are creating outside

         13  of that.  And if you use additional space, there is

         14  a charge for each classroom, there is like $4.20.

         15  Again, these are all in the custodial contract that

         16  we are required to pay the custodians.  And all we

         17  do, the system calculates it exactly, from what the

         18  space is being used.  And we pass along the costs to

         19  the outside organization.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ:  And it is

         21  across- the board, profit or non- profit we would

         22  charge the same?

         23                 MR. BRAWER:  Right, but remember we

         24  do not, for the most part, allow profit

         25  organizations, you know, these are public entities,
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          2  so we are only allowing not- for- profit.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ:  And then

          4  going back to the OST, it is agreed between the DOE

          5  and DYCD that you are going to offset many of those

          6  fees for one year for the use of the facilities.  Is

          7  that correct?

          8                 MR. FEIG:  Not for one year.   For

          9  the OST program, you know, part of the $7.5 million

         10  that we have, and we are anticipating continuing,

         11  would continue to offset those fees for the program.

         12    For the TASC programs that were not selected as

         13  OST sites, those are the programs that we are doing

         14  the one year continuation of the support.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ:  And what is

         16  going to happen after the year?

         17                 MR. FEIG:  Well, we are hoping,- -

         18  Can I punt that one to you, Sandy.  You know, we are

         19  hoping that some of those programs would either

         20  develop some other funding streams, or maybe adjust

         21  their hours, or do anything that might help them to

         22  reduce that obligation.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ:  Now,

         24  bringing back the issue of piggybacking, would it be

         25  possible for the Department of Education to consider
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          2  taking on the funding for some smaller, non profit

          3  that are looking to do programs in the school, when

          4  there is already an existing program in the school

          5  building.

          6                 In other words, there was some level

          7  of discrepancy or autonomy in many of the school

          8  districts when applying for a permit.  And you will

          9  have principals that would evaluate what programs

         10  they had going in their schools, and send it back to

         11  the Region.  And at that point, they would make a

         12  decision based on the amount of programs in the

         13  school, whether a local, non- profit community group

         14  would be able to come in and waive some of those

         15  fees.

         16                 MR. FEIG:  Well we do not do the

         17  waivers.  One of the things that we did to try and

         18  level the playing field, was when we updated our

         19  policy, you know, we tried not to have those

         20  preferential arrangements.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ:  But it is

         22  not level, because when you look at some of the

         23  groups in OST, some of these groups have large

         24  budgets.  As opposed to another group that may not

         25  have such a large budget, that it is trying to carry
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          2  out a program.  So, when you are talking about

          3  leveling the playing field, it is not really level.

          4                 MR. FEIG:  Yes, that is fair.  I was

          5  going to suggest that one of things we do work with

          6  agencies on, and the Regional Operations Center take

          7  the lead on that, is there are more economical ways

          8  of accessing the building.  So if there is a group

          9  that is looking, you know, to provide a service.

         10  And if they are somewhat flexible in their hours of

         11  operation, or perhaps, in location, if they can

         12  partner at a site that already has paid the opening

         13  fees, then they have that ability to still do the

         14  piggybacking that was done in the district.  And the

         15  piece that we are kind of constrained on is we do

         16  not have a pot of money to pay for waivers.  But,

         17  certainly, if they are doing things more

         18  efficiently, that makes it cheaper for everybody.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ:  Yes, you

         20  know, another concern that arises, you know, looking

         21  at next year's budget, it does not look too good.

         22  And it was the Council that put in the money for the

         23  Beacon Schools.  What is going to happen if we

         24  cannot deliver for the Beacon Schools?

         25                 MR. FEIG:  Well, with the Beacon
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          2  Schools, we charge the actual usage and get

          3  reimbursed.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ:  But we pay

          5  for it.  The Council is paying for it.

          6                 MR. FEIG:  And we appreciate that.  I

          7  guess I will defer to my colleagues over here.

          8                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CHONG:  We will

          9  go back to pass practice where $50,000 was deducted

         10  prior to the contract awards of the Beacons.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ:  It goes

         12  back to less services.

         13                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CHONG:  That is

         14  the arrangement that has been in place until the

         15  Council added the additional monies this year.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ:  So, are you

         17  having conversations with the Administration to come

         18  up some money to maintain the program, not the

         19  Council?

         20                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CHONG:  Well, it

         21  is premature at this juncture to speak to the FY '07

         22  budget, when we have to deal with certain challenges

         23  before then.  Obviously, we would want to expand and

         24  continue after- school programs with no additional

         25  costs charged to Beacons.  But that is a decision
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          2  that at this point we cannot make.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ:  But do you

          4  understand that we have to become partners in

          5  planning for next year, because not only are we

          6  talking about trying to get, you know, groups to use

          7  the facilities in communities that do not have a lot

          8  of facilities to provide services to youth, but when

          9  we talk about the overall picture in terms of using

         10  the school facilities, Beacon Schools may be

         11  effected.  Because the fact of the matter is, that

         12  it was this City Council that, you know, said you

         13  know, we need to help the Beacon Schools to continue

         14  to provide services.  Therefore, we made it our

         15  priority to put those monies in the budget so that

         16  they will not have to reduce services.

         17                 Now, what you are telling me is that

         18  it is too premature.  But we know for a fact now,

         19  that we have a budget deficit.  And we have to deal

         20  with it.  Therefore, I do not hear anything in terms

         21  of, you know, what are we going to do to make sure

         22  these programs continue at the level that they are

         23  at now, and not go back to reduce services, at the

         24  Beacons, particularly next year, where we have a

         25  budget deficit.

                                                            34

          1  COMMITTEE ON YOUTH SERVICES

          2                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CHONG:  I wish we

          3  could answer that question at this juncture, but we

          4  do not have the information to make a decision on

          5  what the financial resources available will be at

          6  this juncture.  We agree that Beacons have been able

          7  to leverage other programs.  Mario can speak to some

          8  of the programs that we were able to collate, locate

          9  with smaller CBOs.

         10                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER BRUNO:  Even

         11  before we got that $50,000 increase from the

         12  Council, since the inception of the Beacon program,

         13  the Beacon program is supporting the collocation of

         14  smaller non- profits, who are not funded by us, but

         15  have signed an agreement with the Beacon provider.

         16  And they have an agreement of cooperation, and once

         17  that happens the space used by the co- locator is

         18  added to the permit that the Beacon has.  And then

         19  we pay the additional opening fees.  And although I

         20  do not have that number, I would guess that we are

         21  supporting at least 100 programs that way.  But I

         22  would have to go through all 80 contracts to tell

         23  you exactly how many.

         24                 But we have, I can point to a few

         25  schools where they have maybe three or four, or five
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          2  co- locators.  And the space fees are being paid by

          3  DYCD, through that opening fee budget.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ:  Yes, Mr.

          5  Chair, I am going to let some of my colleagues also

          6  speak on this issue.  And I know they have some

          7  questions.   But, you know, I really wish that the

          8  Department of Education and the Department of Youth

          9  and Community Services would really understand that

         10  we need to pay the fees, but also there is an issue

         11  in double- dipping in many areas when trying to use

         12  school facilities.  When we look at the No Child

         13  Left Behind monies that are coming in, already, you

         14  know, fees are coming out of those contracts.  The

         15  Council has stepped up to the plate in terms of

         16  ensuring that we have the money for Beacon Schools

         17  to do their activities in the schools.

         18                 We really need to also consider the

         19  fact that when we look at what is happening in

         20  communities, many of the local, non- for- profits

         21  are also doing the service, in terms of providing

         22  many of the programs that are expensive to carry-

         23  out, that we need in our communities, and also

         24  enhance the educational experiences of the children

         25  of our community, which is the mission as you
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          2  mentioned in your closing statement, of the

          3  Department of Education.

          4                 So, I think as long as these programs

          5  are meeting the mission of the Department of

          6  Education, and they are not on another track, I

          7  think that we must do everything that we can to

          8  carry- out these programs in communities.  Again,

          9  such as the one I represent that lack many

         10  facilities, such as museums, such as private

         11  entities that have cultural centers.  The schools

         12  are anchored buildings in our communities that we

         13  need to have access to, not only for cultural

         14  activity, but educational activity both for our

         15  children and our adults.

         16                 And the purpose of this Resolution is

         17  bring attention onto the fact that there is a needed

         18  need to have these doors open to our communities.

         19  And with respect to the custodial staff and the

         20  security staff, we need these facilities open.  And

         21  I think that where there is a way, there is a mean.

         22  And we have, sort of like, a list of programs that

         23  are being run throughout the schools, especially

         24  with the No Child Left Behind monies that are all

         25  over the regions.  I think that there is room
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          2  available to carry- out many of the activities that

          3  the non- profits are looking to do.

          4                 Mr. Chair, again I want to thank you

          5  for holding this hearing, and the staff of the

          6  Committee in putting this Resolution together.  And

          7  I look forward to continuing to work on this issue.

          8  Thank you, Mr. Chair.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER:  Thank you,

         10  Council Member Martinez.  We have joined by Council

         11  Member Robert Jackson.  I have a couple of questions

         12  I am going to stick in here, before I ask my

         13  colleagues to add any others.

         14                 Mr. Brawer, could this Committee get

         15  a copy of the formula?  Is that something that can

         16  be boiled down to a page or two?

         17                 MR. BRAWER:  We can give you that,

         18  sure.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER:  Okay, I think we

         20  would all be very interested in knowing that.  I

         21  just want to understand a little bit about how it

         22  works.  I still do not get from this conversation.

         23  Let's say a region wants to have a CEC meeting in a

         24  building.  And on the same night a CBO wants to do

         25  something in the building.   Because the CEC is
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          2  having a meeting, and you are picking up that cost,

          3  right, am I correct?

          4                 MR. BRAWER:  Yes.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER:  All right.  Does

          6  the CBO then have to pay any additional fee?

          7                 MR. BRAWER:  It sometimes depends on

          8  who came first with the building.  If the CBO has

          9  the use of the building that have done, the CEC as a

         10  Department borne cost, we will allow them to use the

         11  building.  If it is already opened and paid there is

         12  no second opening.

         13                 If it is the reverse, you know, where

         14  we know we will always try to support the CBO and

         15  let them piggyback on an event.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER:  Is there an

         17  additional cost to DOE?

         18                 MR. BRAWER:  No, we are only trying

         19  to capture the cost of what we have to pay the

         20  custodians.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER:  So, if you know,

         22  if the CBO applies to use PS123, first, and then the

         23  CEC meeting is scheduled second, the CBO has to pay

         24  the full load?

         25                 MR. BRAWER:  No, no, the additional
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          2  space by the CEC, whatever they are using is covered

          3  by the Department, only the additional space.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER:  So if the

          5  building is already opened and the CBO is going to

          6  use a classroom, they go through a process and you

          7  charge them $4.20.

          8                 MR. BRAWER:  Plus opening fees.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER:  But you are

         10  already opened.

         11                 MR. BRAWER:  I am sorry.  I thought

         12  you said--

         13                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER:  I am saying

         14  there is going to be a CEC meeting that night.  All

         15  right, let's forget who applied first.  All right,

         16  so you are already opening.  Then the CBO needs a

         17  classroom to run a meeting.  What is the charge to

         18  the CBO?

         19                 MR. BRAWER:  For the most part, we

         20  will always try to piggyback if we can, where we

         21  know when we can.  Like I said before, it is a

         22  manual system we are trying to balance out.  We are

         23  automating the system to try and capture some of

         24  this stuff so it is done electronically.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER:  I can well
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          2  appreciate the automation of the system, but I am

          3  not understanding the premise and that is what I am

          4  trying to get.

          5                 MR. FEIG:  As Sandy is saying, some

          6  fall through the cracks.  But if it does not fall

          7  through the cracks then our policy would be that we

          8  do not charge the CBO the opening fee.  It is

          9  already open for the CEC, and therefore, there would

         10  not be an opening fee to have to charge the CBO.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER:  So then they are

         12  just paying for the classroom.

         13                 MR. BRAWER:  Just paying for the

         14  room.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER:  Which is $4.20

         16  or something, is that correct?

         17                 MR. BRAWER:  Correct.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ:  They are

         19  paying for more than that.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER:  Well that is not

         21  the testimony Council member.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ:  No, but

         23  lets talk, if the CEC is meeting let's say, in the

         24  auditorium.  And they have two bathrooms open,

         25  because every bathroom that is open you pay a fee.
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          2  Right or not?  The answer is yes.  So if you are up

          3  on the third floor and you have one classroom, and

          4  you need a bathroom on the third floor, you pay for

          5  that bathroom also.  Every room that you utilize

          6  there is a fee established in the schedule for that.

          7    Isn't that correct?

          8                 MR. FEIG:  Yes.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ:  Yes, so

         10  besides the room fee, if they are on the third

         11  floor, they are paying especially if they have male

         12  and female, they need a woman's bathroom open and a

         13  men's bathroom.  So, besides the room, you are

         14  paying for the bathrooms also, and any other rooms

         15  that utilize.   So, it is not just the room.  It is

         16  the room, plus the bathroom, and anything else.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER:  Okay.  As long

         18  as the Council member asked the question, do we

         19  also, I mean I not trying to be funny.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ:  I did not

         21  ask a question, I clarified.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER:  And very well.

         23  Do we pay for opening the staircase to the third

         24  floor?  What else is on the schedule?  I am not

         25  trying to be funny.
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          2                 MR. BRAWER:  No, it is not.  It is

          3  room usage.  It is space usage.  And Councilman is

          4  correct, when you using a classroom you have to have

          5  bathrooms.  If you are using adults and students,

          6  you have to have separate adult/student bathrooms.

          7  So, whatever usage is being is what has to be

          8  charged.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER:  So, on a

         10  particular night that the CEC is meeting in PS123,

         11  you know, the ABC Civic Association wants to have a

         12  meeting in your school.  They are going to be

         13  charged for the room, the classroom, and the two

         14  bathrooms, essentially, because let's say it is a

         15  small/medium one classroom kind of meeting.  Those

         16  are the three charges that they would incur?

         17                 MR. BRAWER:  Again to clarify what

         18  Mr. Feig, the intent would be yes to piggyback and

         19  cover those costs.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER:  I am not trying

         21  to play gotcha with you.  I mean if it is working

         22  right.

         23                 MR. BRAWER:  No, no, no, I am being

         24  honest.  If it was working right, they would just

         25  pay for the additional space.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER:  And

          3  approximately how much would those three charges be,

          4  the classroom and the two bathrooms?

          5                 MR. BRAWER:  Probably around four

          6  dollars and change each for each location.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER:  How much does it

          8  cost you to process the paperwork to collect that

          9  twelve bucks?

         10                 MR. BRAWER:  I cannot answer that.  I

         11  do not have that.  Most of it is not that though.

         12  Most of it is large usage, it is not the small

         13  usage.  You know, you are looking at most of it is

         14  school programs or CBO Programs that extend over a

         15  good part of the year.  The one- day individual

         16  usage is not the greatest amount of what we process.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER:  Right.

         18                 MR. FEIG:  But again, with processing

         19  we also have to pay the custodians.  So we have to

         20  calculate that fee anyway.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER: I understand, I

         22  do, really I do. Now, in the eventuality that a CBO

         23  applies to use your building first.  And so, they

         24  are charged the opening fee.  And then later on, the

         25  CEC or the PTA decides they are going to hold a
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          2  meeting that night, can they ask you to waive the

          3  opening fee retroactively?  Is that permitted or

          4  once you have, they asked first, you know, stuck

          5  they have to pay it?

          6                 MR. BRAWER:  We do not technically do

          7  that, because whoever uses the space first, is who

          8  we charge.  They have had first use, first crack at

          9  the space, they have had first choice of what spaces

         10  they have gotten.  And to, truthfully, if we wound

         11  up getting into all the different spaces and

         12  reimbursing everybody, I mean the administrative

         13  costs to just calculate and control that would be

         14  huge.

         15                 We usually have a policy right now,

         16  first come, first serve.  You have got choice and

         17  you pay the opening fees.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER:  Can you tell us

         19  how much is actually expended on all of these costs

         20  that are related to this entire discussion, the

         21  opening fees, the custodians cost, all of that, in a

         22  given year in the City budget?

         23                 MR. FEIG:  Net to the Department is

         24  about $40 million in net.  And I think our gross was

         25  about $58.  So we spend somewhere in the

                                                            45

          1  COMMITTEE ON YOUTH SERVICES

          2  neighborhood of $60 million that we pay out to the

          3  custodians.  We collect about $20 million, you know,

          4  in fees.  And then the rest of that are activities

          5  that are provided by the Department, you know, clubs

          6  to the schools or really part of the schools

          7  mission.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER:  So you are

          9  saying that the cost to the City budget, beyond the

         10  stuff that you are already picking up is $20

         11  million?

         12                 MR. FEIG:  Let me make sure I said it

         13  right.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER:  If I understand

         15  correctly, you are paying the custodians, et cetera,

         16  $60 million, and it is net 40, which means that 40

         17  is what- -

         18                 MR. FEIG:  Opposite way around, we

         19  collect 20 and it is net 40.  So we are paying out

         20  $40 million in City Tax Levy funds, primarily, for

         21  the cost that is not reimbursed by any source.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER:  So the non-

         23  reimbursed stuff, the stuff that we are actually

         24  talking about in Council Member Martinez's

         25  Resolution comes to $20 million.
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          2                 MR. FEIG:  Right, no it comes to 40.

          3  We spend 60, collect 20, pay 40.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER:  No, but you are

          5  paying 40 for the stuff that you already agree is

          6  school related and therefore already on your dime.

          7                 MR. FEIG:  Yes.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER:  So, Council

          9  Member Martinez's Resolution speaks to the $20

         10  million that we would love for you to absorb

         11  somehow, without it obviously, effecting

         12  instructional, and the education budget directly.

         13  So, let's be Pollyannaish (sic) here and say the

         14  Council was going to take this problem off your

         15  hands, the way we took it off your hands with

         16  Beacons by providing $40 million of money.  It is

         17  not like you guys decided you were going to give the

         18  Beacons a break.  We gave the Beacons $4 million and

         19  covered the costs.

         20                 So for us to cover the costs for

         21  facilities fees, without it effecting your

         22  operations otherwise, we would need to pony- up $20

         23  million.

         24                 MR. FEIG:  Let me make two points.

         25  Actually, it is a bit less than that, because some
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          2  of that $20 million I do not think you would want to

          3  pony- up because that is reimbursements that we will

          4  be getting from, construction companies for example.

          5    If we have to open up a building for a

          6  construction company because they are doing

          7  renovations, you know, we collect from them.  That

          8  is a part of legitimate cost of renovations.

          9                 The other issue is, that would be for

         10  the existing sets of relationships.  I mean, if we

         11  were to announce a policy that said that, you know,

         12  there were no costs, or the Department was picking

         13  it up, one would have to make a calculation about

         14  how much additional kind of reimbursement would come

         15  in.  And that I think our suspicion will be that

         16  that might be a much larger number.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER:  Okay.

         18                 MR. FEIG:  It is kind of woodwork

         19  effect that would be a financial issue.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER:  Can you get for

         21  us, if I do not imagine that you have it today, but

         22  a breakdown of how much of that $20 million is for

         23  construction companies or other for- profit groups

         24  that might make an occasional use of a DOE facility.

         25                 MR. BRAWER:  Yes, we can give you a
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          2  descent estimate.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER:  Okay, and if

          4  let's say the Council were to find a way to fund the

          5  CBOs and not- for- profits. And I do understand your

          6  point that you know, that the very point would be to

          7  encourage the use of DOE facilities.  You know, if

          8  we were to say, make a policy that, you know, it

          9  would have to be one particular night a week, you

         10  know, Tuesday nights free use of DOE for not- for-

         11  profits, might that not mitigate some of that

         12  additional costs?

         13                 MR. FEIG:  Sure, I mean our premise

         14  and my testimony has all been that we are just

         15  looking to recover costs.  So, if there is a way to

         16  keep costs down through efficient use of buildings,

         17  then there would be less costs.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER:  I just have one

         19  question for DYCD, and then I will go to the Council

         20  members who are on the list.  How do we get the

         21  $50,000 figure for Beacons?

         22                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER BRUNO:  That

         23  was what was originally moved from their budget.

         24  The Beacons started out with a $450,000 budget and

         25  based on that, based on what we saw as the cost to
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          2  the Beacons for keeping the schools open, we took

          3  that 50 out.  And instead of having the Beacons

          4  caught in paying them individually, we pay the

          5  Department of Education directly.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER:  But how did you

          7  get to that 50,000, you know, number?  We did not

          8  just throw a dart at the wall.  Is there a

          9  calculation that was at work to get the $50,000?

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CHONG:  That is a

         11  question, maybe DOE, that number was given to us by

         12  DOE as sort of a flat rate costs.  Because as you

         13  know, the Beacons are opened five, six days a week,

         14  for many longer hours.  So, the costs are

         15  significantly higher for a Beacon than they would

         16  for any other after- school program that may end at

         17  six.  In many cases, programs operate until nine or

         18  ten at night.  Do you have more detail to this?

         19                 MR. FEIG:  Well, I am sure that we

         20  did some kind of estimate, you know, based upon what

         21  we were seeing from the programs that were in place,

         22  and shared the figures and that was the ballpark.

         23  But again, if you varied the hours, I am sure the

         24  numbers would be different.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER:  Well, that was a
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          2  calculation that was initially made a very long time

          3  ago.  Do you have a sense of whether or not the

          4  actual costs under the Custodians Contract for a

          5  Beacon Program is more or less than $50,000 a

          6  school?

          7                 MR. FEIG:  It would depend on the

          8  Beacon program. As I was saying, if a Beacon

          9  program, we have Beacon programs that exceed the

         10  $50,000 and some go under, but then we have the

         11  additional cost of fingerprinting.  The DOE,

         12  although I do not know if that is going to change

         13  now, with new policies that we are adopting for OST.

         14    But up until now, all of the fingerprinting that

         15  is done through OPI gets billed back to us.  Rather

         16  than, when it became a requirement that all the

         17  Beacon personnel get fingerprinted, the contractor

         18  staff, we incurred the costs.  So, it is the

         19  fingerprinting, and then, like I said, the opening

         20  fee.  And the opening fees, some go under, but some

         21  go over if they have a lot of money collocated.  For

         22  instance, like Harlem Children's Zone, some years we

         23  had opening fees of $75,000 because their Beacon

         24  would have so many other funds, like about two

         25  million dollars of their own monies collocated with
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          2  our $400,000.  So, obviously, they were using a

          3  great deal of the school, as opposed to another

          4  program that only has about $400,000 worth of

          5  activities going on.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER:  I am sure I will

          7  have more as we go forward.  I have Councilman

          8  Gallagher on the list.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER GALLAGHER:  Thank you,

         10  Mr. Chairman. And many of the questions that I was

         11  going to ask, the Chairman asked or Council Member

         12  Martinez asked.  I would like to thank Council

         13  Member Martinez who brings this issue forward,

         14  because certainly it has been an issue in my

         15  community as well.

         16                 Mr. Feig, if I could just ask you a

         17  few questions, very brief.  What percentage has the

         18  usage increased since 2003?

         19                 MR. FEIG:  I am not sure.  As a fee

         20  or as a total revenue we take in?

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER GALLAGHER:  Well,

         22  let's take it for example, if somebody had that

         23  classroom, that Lew Fidler was talking about at

         24  Public School 123.  And they rented it in 2002, and

         25  2003, and now they are renting it for 2005 and 2006.
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          2    What would that fee have been in 2003 verses what

          3  is it going to be for 2005 and 2006?

          4                 MR. FEIG:  I do not have that.  We

          5  can probably do a calculation and get back to you on

          6  that.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER GALLAGHER:  Do you

          8  have a vague idea? And I will tell you why.  And I

          9  will tell you why, because of the CBOs in my

         10  community have come forward and saying that these

         11  fees have almost doubled over the last three or four

         12  years.  And I have been appreciative that the

         13  Department has been willing to sit down and work

         14  with, in terms of the security issue, and maybe they

         15  would not have to pay the security fee if they

         16  provided their own security.  But still, a number of

         17  them have indicated that the fees have gone up.

         18                 And I want to know is that because

         19  there is a contract change?  Is that because the DOE

         20  has started re- evaluating its costs?  Why all of a

         21  sudden since 2003 and 2005, has the fee dramatically

         22  increased, Sir?

         23                 MR. FEIG:  Yes, we will have to look

         24  at whether its dramatically increased, that would

         25  not be my knowledge.  But the changes would be, you
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          2  know, changes in the reimbursement to the

          3  custodians, and as they got pay raises, our fees

          4  would have gone up.

          5                 And the other difference, which they

          6  maybe feeling, which I mentioned in the testimony,

          7  we charge 15 percent for the fringe benefits, and

          8  the health insurance, and the overhead.  And

          9  previously, that had not been in the fee, but that

         10  is a real cost that we incur.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER GALLAGHER:  And is

         12  that the same with the security fee?  Did you always

         13  institute the security fee in, or when did you start

         14  instituting the security fee?

         15                 MR. BRAWER:  The security fee was

         16  something that was always charged for school safety

         17  issues, because it is a cost to the Department, we

         18  have to pay the overtime to NYPD.  So, that is not,

         19  the only thing I can think of is if you go back in

         20  terms of past practice, what we talked about before,

         21  of what people use to do with districts, and I know

         22  2003 was still in the new world.  But there was a

         23  change over that happened over that year- and- a-

         24  half. Some fees use to be charged differently than

         25  others.  There use to be breaks given out.  And we
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          2  are now being very consistent, as we said with the

          3  policy.

          4                 I cannot imagine why somebody's would

          5  double, unless their space usage doubled, or time of

          6  day changed, or the amount of time that they are

          7  using it.  It would not double though, I cannot

          8  imagine, unless some of the factors that I just

          9  mentioned changed.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER GALLAGHER:  I know

         11  that there has already paperwork that has been

         12  submitted that showed you fees that had doubled, and

         13  we were able to work off, at least, the security fee

         14  aspect of it, which alleviated some of it.  But the

         15  unfortunate aspect of that, was it was now, the

         16  organization came back to the City Council and was

         17  looking for additional funding through DYCD, so that

         18  they could go and pay the DOE.  So, it is kind of

         19  unbelievable that we will sit here and watch some of

         20  the fees increase.  And then we will go on through

         21  this game where paperwork is going to have to be

         22  filled out at the City Council level to go to the

         23  Department of Youth and Community Development, so

         24  that we can go and pay the Department of Education.

         25  It just seems like there is something wrong with it.

                                                            55

          1  COMMITTEE ON YOUTH SERVICES

          2    And I am glad we had this hearing.

          3                 And one thing that came out today,

          4  which I think is extremely important, is that you

          5  would be charging a small, community- based

          6  organization the same fee as a for- profit

          7  organization for the use of the school system.  Do

          8  you have a percentage of your permits, or your usage

          9  fees, that are derived from for- profit

         10  organizations?

         11                 MR. FEIG:  I do not have them.  We

         12  can look it up. As Sandy mentioned earlier, it is

         13  minimal.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER GALLAGHER:  I do not

         15  know how minimal it is.  You know, I am a sports

         16  guy.  I have seen volleyball tournaments, basketball

         17  tournaments, and a lot tournaments in public

         18  schools, and in high schools, and schools all over

         19  the City of New York, many of which are for- profit

         20  organizations.  They are all making a profit for it.

         21    So,  I am sure that maybe if you look into it

         22  closely, that you will see that there are a lot

         23  more.

         24                 I do not have a problem charging a

         25  for- profit organization more money to recoup some
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          2  of your costs if it is going to lower the price for

          3  a local CBO, who may be has 200 participants or 200

          4  kids that want to go out and do some arts and

          5  crafts, or play some sports in their gym after-

          6  school.  I mean, school was always open for me when

          7  I was growing up in Glendale.  And I use to go in

          8  there and I use to play basketball.  And it kept on

          9  the sort of right track.  And a lot of my friends

         10  took the yellow brick road to success, and I think I

         11  was a little bit more direct because I had those

         12  opportunities available to me.

         13                 And I think that what we are doing is

         14  we are out feeing some of our community- based

         15  organizations.  And then they are going to come back

         16  to the City Council, and folks, you know, we did not

         17  talk about a lot during the campaign, but we should

         18  start talking about it right now.  There are huge

         19  budget deficits coming and there is not going to be

         20  as much money that is going to be floating around.

         21  And what you are going to be doing with these fees,

         22  and if we do not find a way to reduce them, is

         23  stopping kids from having a place to go after

         24  school. Which I cannot tell you how important it is

         25  in my community, and I am sure throughout the entire
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          2  City of New York, to give our kids an opportunity to

          3  have a safe place to go, to give some places for

          4  arts and crafts, sports, and keep them on the right

          5  direction.  And these fees increasing is not going

          6  to help us do that.  It is going to set us back.

          7                 Thank you.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER:  Thank you,

          9  Councilman Gallagher.  Councilman Vann.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER VANN:  Thank you, Mr.

         11  Chairman. Gentlemen, I have a problem in my

         12  district.  There is an organization that should be

         13  unnamed, who for many, many years have been running

         14  youth programs throughout Central Brooklyn,

         15  actually. They were touted by the federal government

         16  as being one of the best in the nation in running

         17  these programs.  Several Chancellors, as a result of

         18  these programs, out of either the discretionary

         19  funds or whatever funds, provided the opening fees

         20  and security fees, and so on and so forth.  The

         21  system changed.  The Chancellor no longer chose, or

         22  whatever, to provide these funds, that everything

         23  now comes through, Out-of-School Time, or something,

         24  whatever, all the acronyms.  Unfortunately, this

         25  particular organization did not do well with the
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          2  paper, did not respond well.  Notwithstanding, their

          3  history of running very good programs, they did not

          4  show well on paper.  And I guess there is a lot of

          5  -- well, I will not go into that.

          6                 So consequently, all of the young

          7  people, all the parental involvement, all of the

          8  positive impact that this community had is now

          9  threatened because they failed some tests, paper

         10  tests, if you will.  I have a problem, because they

         11  are still engaged at this moment.  I do not know how

         12  they are going to pay this situation, because we

         13  threw everything to this DYCD, and the Out-of-School

         14  Time, whatever, and I assume there are other

         15  programs caught up around the City in this, but I

         16  know this particular one in Central Brooklyn.  And I

         17  need to know how we can help these people until such

         18  time they are better prepared to do a paper

         19  response.  Because these are real programs, real

         20  young people, a lot of people involved, providing

         21  very, very, very positive, well-known programs that

         22  are now at risk and I do not have an answer.  Can

         23  you help me?

         24                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CHONG:  Well, as

         25  you know, I think it is the organization that we met
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          2  about.  And unfortunately, many good programs were

          3  not funded through Out-of-School Time because we had

          4  limited amount of funds.  Forty percent of those who

          5  did apply were selected to run Out-of-School Time

          6  programs.  We have five hundred and almost sixty

          7  programs throughout the City, a significant increase

          8  from previous numbers.  But there are not any other

          9  discretionary funds at our disposal to award to

         10  groups that were not selected.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER VANN:  That is it?

         12                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CHONG:  We have

         13  no other additional funds.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER VANN:  My problem is,

         15  and I understand dilemma, that it is that it is not

         16  acceptable for us to say, that there were more

         17  people than there were funds, so notwithstanding the

         18  fact that they are good programs and helping a lot

         19  of people, there is no other alternative.  There has

         20  to be another alternative.  You must have

         21  partnerships.  You must have relationships.  There

         22  must be private funds.  You must have outreach

         23  beyond the money that we appropriate through the

         24  City process.  In other words, there ought to be a

         25  focus on the problem we have notwithstanding, the
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          2  system we set up to establish a priority for

          3  funding.  It needs to go beyond that.

          4                 Again, remember these are cases that

          5  have been serviced for a long period of time,

          6  providing service for a long period of time.  Yes,

          7  they fail.  They really did fail.  They did not

          8  respond well to the RFP.

          9                 But now, all of the children and

         10  young people involved are going to be victimized

         11  because certain organizational leadership did not,

         12  for whatever reason, respond well on paper. That

         13  seems unfair to me.  Doesn't it?

         14                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CHONG:  Well, the

         15  process for Out- of- School Time was driven by

         16  looking at community need.  And so, certain

         17  neighborhoods were designated having high- priority

         18  zip codes.  And 60 percent of our funding was in

         19  those communities.  We wanted to focus on

         20  communities in need, rather than specific providers.

         21    That is the fairest process we could come up with.

         22    And no process is perfect, but I think the Out-

         23  of- School Time process was as transparent, as fair,

         24  and targets the needs of communities that have,

         25  based on a very clear formula of number young
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          2  people, poverty, different factors were included.

          3  So, I wish we could have a pot of money which we

          4  could access to give to people who were not

          5  selected.  But it was a fair competition.

          6                 And when we met with you a couple

          7  months ago, we were trying to figure out other

          8  funding pools.  But there are not any.  Everything

          9  we have is done through a procurement.  There is not

         10  any discretionary amount of money that we can just

         11  simply write a check for.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER VANN:  How about you,

         13  DOE, anything?

         14                 MR. FEIG:  Well our money went into

         15  supporting the program and you know, we deferred to

         16  DYCD in the selection of the providers.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER VANN:  Thank you for

         18  your help.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER:  Thank you,

         20  Council Member Vann. And I think your comments are

         21  kind of directed at an issue that we have discussed

         22  at another hearing, I think is in large measure the

         23  result of one thing that this Committee criticized

         24  about the OST process, which is the absence of real

         25  community readers that were familiar with the
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          2  programs, and could look beyond the paper that was

          3  submitted.  You know, that process tended to favor

          4  larger groups that had grant writers, and you know,

          5  the programs that, in many respects, have been

          6  valued in the neighborhood, and were known to be

          7  valued in the neighborhood lost out.  And that is a

          8  drum I continue to beat with the Commissioner at

          9  DYCD.

         10                 One other question, I guess I have.

         11  I am still not really fully clear, from our friends

         12  at DOE.  On a school day, a day that school is

         13  ordinarily opened, before six o'clock, do you charge

         14  a group an opening fee?

         15                 MR. BRAWER:  No.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER:  Okay.  Do any of

         17  my colleagues have any additional questions?

         18  Council Member Martinez.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ:  Yes, I just

         20  have a quick question to DYCD.  So DYCD has $150,000

         21  for FY 2006, right, for this CSBG discretionary

         22  funds.  Is that right?

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CHONG:  I do not

         24  follow the question.  I mean our CSBG program is

         25  much bigger than $150,000.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ:  No, but for

          3  the use of school facilities.

          4                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CHONG:  Based on

          5  the information that I have, that in FY '06, about

          6  $150,000 is being spent to cover additional costs

          7  for using school facilities.  And that is not just

          8  CSBG, that is, I think, cuts across all our program

          9  areas, throughout 31 sites.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ:  For 31

         11  sites.

         12                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CHONG:  Thirty-

         13  one sites.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ:  And how

         15  many sites are there for the Out- of- School Time?

         16                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CHONG:  Three

         17  hundred and twenty- two.  So, as I said in my

         18  testimony, over 400 programs are operating in

         19  schools without any additional costs being charged

         20  to them.  So, in addition to the 400, plus there is

         21  about 31 that are using some of our grant money to

         22  cover additional costs related to keeping the school

         23  open.  So, it is relatively small number.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ:  And do you,

         25  aside from the Department of Education, do you have
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          2  your own formula as to how much and how you are

          3  going to pay for the youth?

          4                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CHONG:  No, we

          5  rely on, the provider submits a budget when they

          6  send their contract to us.  And there is a budget

          7  code for this cost.  And then they tell us what the

          8  amount is, because it will vary depending on usage.

          9  If it is a three- day a week program that cost- -

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ:  So, you do

         11  not determine that?

         12                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CHONG:  Yes, it

         13  is up to them. And we just simply pass it through, I

         14  mean it comes out of their award.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ:  Okay, I

         16  thought you determined it.

         17                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CHONG:  No.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ:  Well, thank

         19  you, Mr. Chair, again for and I know we are going to

         20  have additional discussion on this issue as we move

         21  forward.  And I want to thank both the Department of

         22  Education and the Department of Youth and Community.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER:  Any other

         24  questions from Council members?  Thank you very

         25  much.  We do have two panels on this topic.  I
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          2  remind everyone we have a second agenda item today,

          3  as well.  So, I will call first, Moises Perez from

          4  Alianza Dominicana, and Michelle Yanche from the

          5  Neighborhood Family Services Coalition.  Michelle is

          6  not here.  All right, so, Mr. Perez.

          7                 Again, Alianza Dominicana hosted this

          8  Committee for a Beacon tour.  And we say thank you

          9  for that again.  It was a terrific experience for

         10  all of us who went.

         11                 MR. PEREZ:  Okay, we have come to the

         12  table particularly with Beacon schools with quite a

         13  bit of experience. And I have to say that I am proud

         14  that we were part of the original design of the

         15  Beacon back in the Dinkins' Administration.  We

         16  operated one of the original ten Beacons, have

         17  actually taken the operations of second Beacon,

         18  which is also one of the original ten in the High

         19  Bridge Community in the Bronx.  And then, most

         20  recently, in Councilperson, in your colleague, and

         21  we have not had a chance to meet yet.  But we are

         22  also now operating the Beacon school in Hunts Point.

         23  And we do have a meeting pending, you know, on that.

         24                 Our Beacon model, in particular, has

         25  been replicated, right now, in about seven or eight
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          2  different cities throughout the United States.  It

          3  is important that people know that the Beacon model

          4  is a national model that started in New York City,

          5  and is extremely important.

          6                 And just to refresh people's

          7  memories, the whole premise of the Beacon was the

          8  notion of a safe haven, that you would go into very

          9  needy and under- served communities, and open full-

         10  blown community centers, not only for children but

         11  for the community at- large to make them safe and to

         12  improve, in fact, educational outcomes, you know,

         13  through that means.  And I think that over the years

         14  we have kind of missed the overall purpose of what

         15  the Beacons were formed for.  Particularly, when the

         16  Giuliani Administration took a look at the Beacon

         17  model, and essentially eliminated about $50,000

         18  from, the original Beacon amount was $500,000.  And

         19  I have to say that in the original design team that

         20  pulled the Beacon together, it was more estimated

         21  that these Beacon programs would cost about one

         22  million dollars.  And out of pure economy, at the

         23  time in New York City, in order to be able to do

         24  ten, and to gain the support of the City Council,

         25  where the majority of the City Councilpersons would
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          2  be having the Beacon in their community, it was

          3  decided that they would be reduced to $500,000, and

          4  that they would only open ten.  And then of course,

          5  you know, that led to the movement.

          6                 I am here to strongly support the

          7  idea and the notion originally as designed for

          8  Beacon programs that are full blown community

          9  centers.  And I can never forget that when we

         10  operated our Beacon, there was a tremendous problem

         11  every day in the school when we first operated at

         12  Plaza IS 143, of security, where literally, as the

         13  principal described it riots everyday.  And not

         14  until our staff, when we began to operate the

         15  Beacon, a full, I do not know, two weeks to resolve

         16  in a way that the school could not.

         17                 And we had a group of mostly young

         18  men, but some young women, who would come every

         19  evening at six, seven o'clock, particularly when it

         20  was warmer.  And they would have marijuana parties

         21  right in front of the school.  And they would leave

         22  all of the paraphernalia there for the kids to step

         23  over early in the morning.  And that took us about,

         24  I do not know, another two weeks to resolve.  And

         25  that the school reported, something like, 60 percent
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          2  of the teachers reported stolen keys, and break- ins

          3  into the school.  And that took us about, I do not

          4  know, maybe about a month to sort of work.  And we

          5  did it, essentially by going out every day and

          6  talking to the community, talking to the young men

          7  mostly, who were creating havoc at school dismissal,

          8  that the school often described as thugs.  And they

          9  were really kids who had graduated from that school

         10  who were coming back, you know, every day.

         11  Sometimes to say hello to the girls and get into

         12  some trouble.

         13                 So, the presence of that Beacon, in

         14  particular, the one that we have most experience

         15  with as we developed the model, has been absolutely

         16  dramatic.  And there was one year, for example, the

         17  first time that we had to go to a school board

         18  meeting, to ask for support for the Beacon, I will

         19  never forget the first person from our program who

         20  presented testimony, who said, you know, in her

         21  broken English, she said that she absolutely thanked

         22  the Beacon program for helping her dramatically

         23  improve her English skills. And that now finally,

         24  she could help her child deal with her homework.

         25  This is what I think, you know, that the Beacon has
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          2  represented in particular.  Not only the Beacon,

          3  because along with the Beacon with us, came a wide-

          4  range of organizations that made use of the space,

          5  that responded to community issues, sometimes they

          6  were unforeseen when you were developing your annual

          7  plan for the building.

          8                 And again, things have dramatically

          9  changed.  And we have not been able to do the kinds

         10  of the things that we needed to do, I think, in

         11  community, and make the space as widely available to

         12  the community with this notion of a community that

         13  is under served, in areas that are, quite frankly,

         14  sometimes dangerous.

         15                 I mean a block away from IS 143,

         16  right now, we have one of the most dangerous street

         17  gangs in Washington Heights, who regularly

         18  congregates around that area.  And every once and

         19  awhile we have to go out and mediate, sometimes

         20  clashes between groups, and go out and mediate

         21  again, the critical time of dismissals.  And this is

         22  not available to us.  And essentially, because the

         23  school opening fees and the use of classroom space

         24  has not made that possible for us, as it was in

         25  previous years.
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          2                 Now, we spend more time and we have

          3  less classrooms, I am sorry, we spend more money and

          4  have less classrooms than say five years ago, when

          5  for less money we had more classrooms and more space

          6  available in the schools to do the kinds of things

          7  that I think would have made that program such of an

          8  important resource in the community.  And for the

          9  kind of money that we were listening to, and talking

         10  about, coming up with that money seems to me, a

         11  worthwhile venture.  Particularly, in communities

         12  such as the three communities that I mentioned.

         13                 And for example, in the Hunts Point

         14  community, where we are now, there is a thriving

         15  prostitution market that comes alive in the evening

         16  hours.  That it is a real concern to people and it

         17  has become, in fact, a concern in enjoying quality

         18  people to go and work there.  Opening up a full-

         19  blown program into the late hours, in the evening

         20  that can do our region, to this population, and to

         21  begin to address some of the issues that are

         22  critical in that community, I think is a worthwhile

         23                 Now, does that have an impact on

         24  educational outcome?  Absolutely so.  Can we draw a

         25  map that absolutely proves it and takes you to that
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          2  point?  Probably with great difficulty. But our

          3  experience tells us that it is extremely important.

          4  And that the costs that we are talking about should

          5  be minimal compared to the overall benefits.

          6                 So, I am here, again, to speak on

          7  behalf of the importance of being able to run a

          8  full- blown Beacon program.  We have, by the way,

          9  never been able to operate, for example, as

         10  originally intended seven days a week.  I believe

         11  that the Beacon, the school building should be

         12  opened seven days a week, including Sundays,

         13  obviously.  And Saturday into the evening, as well.

         14  As a matter of fact, many of the young that we want

         15  to work even closer with, are in most danger during

         16  those times, Friday evenings, Saturdays in the

         17  afternoon and the evening, and then on Sunday, as

         18  well.

         19                 I was a strong proponent of the

         20  midnight basketball initiative that some people

         21  criticize.  Because to me, it was much safer and

         22  healthier to have young men and women playing

         23  basketball, even up until two o'clock in the morning

         24  on a Saturday evening, than being out there in the

         25  community without any supervision, and so on, and so
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          2  forth.

          3                 But again, the prohibitive uses of

          4  the school building related to the opening and the

          5  use of the facility fees, I think has been a real

          6  problem.  And it also has meant that we have not

          7  been able to, again, to respond to issues as they

          8  arise. Sometimes you need to have a community

          9  meeting, impromptu, because something happened in

         10  the community.  But you have to take into account

         11  whether you are going to exceed your budget.  And

         12  how that is going to impact on your overall ability

         13  to run the day- to- day programs that are necessary

         14  in that facility.

         15                 So, I strongly support, again, the

         16  fullest use of the school buildings, particularly in

         17  areas in our City that are under- served, where

         18  there are dangers that young people and parents have

         19  to deal with, and where there is an opportunity to

         20  involve the community in an even deeper sense, in

         21  the educational process through their involvement

         22  and participation in these programs.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER:  Thank you very

         24  much.  Anyone have any questions for Mr. Perez?

         25  Council Member Martinez.

                                                            73

          1  COMMITTEE ON YOUTH SERVICES

          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ:  Thank you,

          3  Moises, for your testimony on this issue.  Now, you

          4  run three Beacon schools, now, right?

          5                 MR. PEREZ:  Yes.  And OST programs,

          6  too.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ:  Now, are

          8  local CBOs allowed to come to you and say, well Mr.

          9  Perez, you are running the Beacon school, we want to

         10  do a one classroom ESL.  Is that allowed?

         11                 MR. PEREZ:  It is allowed.  But

         12  again, the problem is that, we are one of those

         13  Beacons who almost every year exceeds their budget.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ:  Exceeds?

         15                 MR. PEREZ:  Exceeds the opening, you

         16  know, the amount of money that we have for opening

         17  fees, and for use of the facility.  So it becomes a

         18  real problem when you do not have that.           COUNCIL

         19  MEMBER MARTINEZ:  So, your budget is more than

         20  $50,000 for the use of facilities.

         21                 MR. PEREZ:  We have been known to run

         22  over that budget, yes.  Luckily, I think- -

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ:  Is that

         24  because of the local need?

         25                 MR. PEREZ:  That is because of the
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          2  local needs and the level of activities, you know,

          3  that we run and operate.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ:  So, if you

          5  were only to adhere yourself to the $50,000, how

          6  much program would you lose if you only did the

          7  $50,000 for use of facilities, in terms of

          8  percentage wise?

          9                 MR. PEREZ:  Gosh, I do not think I

         10  have ever figured, I do not want to misspeak.  But I

         11  do not think I have ever, sort of, figured it out

         12  that way.  But the reality is that we have been

         13  scaling back over the years.  You know, and

         14  purposefully at the beginning of the year, really

         15  limiting the amount of work that could be done, you

         16  know, in the Beacon school, and that should be done.

         17     Again, whether it is in response to a meeting in

         18  the community, or something that happens that needs

         19  to be addressed, or an opportunity that appears, you

         20  know, to do some good, needed work, but you are

         21  hesitant to sort of get into because of the fact

         22  that you are just going to go over your budget.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ:  So, let me

         24  ask you a different question.  So, in one of your

         25  Beacons that you run, have you come across another
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          2  organization that is running a program in the school

          3  at the same time you are running it?

          4                 MR. PEREZ:  Absolutely.  SES

          5  providers

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ:  And are

          7  they paying the--.  The who?

          8                 MR. PEREZ:  You know, the SES, the

          9  Leave No Child.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ:  Are they

         11  paying the fees for being in the facility also?

         12                 MR. PEREZ:  You know, that is a good

         13  question. Because I think that some of the testimony

         14  that we heard this morning, that is not uniform

         15  practice.  And you never quite know how it is that

         16  you are being billed, you know, for the spaces that

         17  you are using, or who got there first and paid the

         18  opening fees, or whether you are.  My feeling is

         19  that we are paying opening fees for the time that we

         20  are in that school all the time.  And then we are

         21  billed additionally for whatever room.  Now, if

         22  other providers, SES providers, or anybody else is

         23  also paying an opening fee, I could not really tell

         24  you that right now.  But my feeling is that probably

         25  all of us are.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ:  Okay,

          3  because that is the reports that I have gotten from

          4  a lot of the non- profit organizations is that, I

          5  will give a classic example, with the Immigration

          6  Opportunities Initiative money, where the Council is

          7  trying to put monies back into the communities for

          8  ESL courses. You have organizations that want to

          9  provide the same program in one school.  And they

         10  are both being charged the same amount of money. And

         11  I think that is outrageous.  And when calling the

         12  Department of Education, they gave me the same

         13  explanation here, that maybe one is paying for the

         14  opening fee, and the other one is paying for the use

         15  of facility, or maybe another one is paying for

         16  additional or more classroom than the other.  But I

         17  agree with you that there is not kind of uniform

         18  standard as to how the formula comes up.

         19                 MR. PEREZ:  Well, let me put it to

         20  you this way, we have had requests from other

         21  community organizations, who come to us and want to

         22  do ambitious programs.  They want to run a workshop,

         23  three times a week for X number of hours.  And we

         24  have taken a look at them, and said, hey, listen we

         25  really do not have the budget for this, let me
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          2  explain to you how it works.  And we have sent them

          3  to the school.  And they come back to us and they

          4  say we cannot do it because they are being billed

          5  for opening fees, even though we are in the building

          6  already.  It should not have happened.  And then

          7  they are being billed for additional services in

          8  relationship to the use of the rooms.

          9                 No one has come back to me and said,

         10  we do not have to pay opening fees because you are

         11  in the building.  It is sort of that everyone who

         12  comes, you know, gets the full, it seems to me that

         13  this is the way it has been happening, it gets the

         14  full scheme of costs, you know, applied to the

         15  program that they want to implement.

         16                 I do not think there is uniformity,

         17  to be honest with you.  It does not seem that way

         18  that there is uniformity in terms of how the

         19  formulas, you know, have been applied, vis- a- vis,

         20  the groups.  And a lot of the coordination has also

         21  taken place at the level of DYCD.  And I have to tip

         22  my hat over to the DYCD folks that have worked with

         23  us, you know, very closely, sometimes when we exceed

         24  our budgets and things like that, and trying to

         25  accommodate. But they are not the only partners, you

                                                            78

          1  COMMITTEE ON YOUTH SERVICES

          2  know, in this process either.  And then, of course,

          3  you know the school people have their own realities

          4  to deal with with their budgets.

          5                 But, it seems to me, that this money

          6  ought to be made available, and the goals are

          7  worthwhile, and the benefits are, you know,

          8  justified.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ:  Thank you.

         10  Thank you, Mr. Chair.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER:  One question.

         12  When you run over the $50,000, you know, when do you

         13  find out about that?  Are you then expected to, I

         14  mean actually, do you have pay the amount over the

         15  $50,000.

         16                 MR. PEREZ:  We have been lucky to

         17  have a good relationship with the folks at DYCD.

         18  And DYCD has always managed to cover that.  I think

         19  they do it by, essentially, taking the money from

         20  programs that probably have not run over, you know,

         21  that amount.  So there has not been a situation

         22  where we have had to sort of dish out.  But

         23  obviously, the caution comes, you have to control

         24  what you are doing.  You cannot be exceeding your

         25  budget and that kind of a thing.  And that is where
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          2  the limitations begin to come into play.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER:  Well, do they

          4  bill you?  Do you send you- -

          5                 MR. PEREZ:  No.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER: - - a notice

          7  that, you know, after three months this is how much

          8  you have used.

          9                 MR. PEREZ:  No, because, you know, it

         10  seems the money never really enters our budget.  It

         11  is handled directly by DYCD.  I think that they work

         12  that out directly with the Department of Education.

         13  And so we never know, or get involved in that aspect

         14  of it.  And we have never really, even though we run

         15  out of budget, we have never had to, sort of pay

         16  additional money for that.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER:  Well that is

         18  kind of interesting because we know this is a zero

         19  sum game.  Someone has to pay the custodians costs.

         20  And that would be somewhat of an indication that the

         21  $50,000 per Beacon averages out to an amount greater

         22  than their costs.  Otherwise, they would have to be

         23  coming to someone for the money to fix the gap.  And

         24  that is very interesting testimony, Mr. Perez.  I am

         25  sorry that our friends from DOE and DYCD are not
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          2  here to hear it so that we could inquire further.

          3                 Any other questions for Mr. Perez?

          4  Councilman Jackson.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Thank you.

          6  Moises, let me just say that I remember, I was the

          7  president of the school board when the Beacons

          8  started at IS 143.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ:  Were you at

         10  that hearing?

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  You mean

         12  going way, way back?

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ:  Yes the

         14  hearing he mentioned.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Yes,

         16  probably I was because I was involved in when it

         17  first opened up.  And let me just say that I think

         18  that you run an excellent program there.  And as far

         19  as, the experiences as far as piggybacking on

         20  programs, I mean obviously, I had a basketball

         21  program that we played ourselves, and we use to have

         22  to pay the opening fee, and the mens room.  We did

         23  not have any women, so we did not have to have any

         24  women's room open, just the mens room.  And every

         25  little room that you open, whether it is the gym or
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          2  the bathroom, everything you had to pay for, it was

          3  in the schedule.

          4                 I think that the more transparency

          5  there is, so when groups come to piggyback on the

          6  Beacon school, clearly, do not double dip as far as

          7  opening fees, and bathrooms if they are using the

          8  same bathrooms that you are using, they should not

          9  have to pay for that.  Only if they use other rooms

         10  or facilities that you are not using, that is all

         11  they have to pay for.  And I remember that very,

         12  very clearly.

         13                 And it is extremely important that

         14  what we do is to make sure that other groups are

         15  aware of what the regulations are pertaining to it.

         16  And that there is a check and balance to assist

         17  other groups in utilizing space at the Department of

         18  Education. But I just wanted to say, you know, as

         19  the ED of Alianza Dominicana, I believe that you

         20  are, in my opinion, doing an excellent job in

         21  running the program, and helping our youth in our

         22  community over the years.  And I appreciate that.

         23                 MR. PEREZ:  Thank you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER:  Thank you,

         25  Council member.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ:  Mr. Chair,

          3  I need to excuse myself, I have another hearing with

          4  the Higher Education and Immigration at City Hall.

          5  I want to thank you again.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER:  Okay.  Thank

          7  you.  Thank you, Mr. Perez.  Unless Ms. Yanche shows

          8  up, our final panel on the first topic is Chris

          9  Whipple from TASC, Gary Bernstein from Wingspan

         10  Arts, and Traci Douglas from NDS.  Somebody start.

         11                 MR. WHIPPLE:  Good afternoon.  I will

         12  start.  My name is Chris Whipple, I am a Vice

         13  President at the After- School Corporation, better

         14  known as TASC.  Thank you for inviting me to speak

         15  about after- school programs for the facilities

         16  fees.

         17                 The After- School Corporation was

         18  established in 1998 to enhance the quality,

         19  availability, and sustainability of in school after-

         20  school programs in New York City, New York State,

         21  and eventually across the nation.  We are working to

         22  create a network of high- quality after- school

         23  programs that are operated by community- based

         24  organizations in public schools.  Our ultimate goal,

         25  is to promote sustainable, universal after- school
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          2  programming as a public responsibility.

          3                 Today, currently, we are supporting

          4  over 200 after school programs across the city,

          5  serving more than 35,000 students. In the written

          6  testimony there is some comments about the impact of

          7  after- school programs.  I am going to skip over

          8  that on the belief that everyone here is convinced

          9  that after- school programs are absolutely critical

         10  to youth and to families.

         11                 I want to focus, instead, on how

         12  crucial it was that we received a waiver of facility

         13  fees, when we, the After- School Corporation came

         14  into being in 1998.  Before OST, which is a very

         15  significant step in making after- school programming

         16  a public responsibility.  But before OST, TASC and

         17  some other after- school program providers

         18  negotiated an agreement with the Department of

         19  Education, which provided for free security, snacks,

         20  fingerprinting, the coverage of custodial fees,

         21  transportation for paras (sic), I mean I am sorry

         22  transportation for special needs kids, paras who

         23  worked in the after- school programs, and that also

         24  included some money for custodial fees after six.

         25  But basically, it absolutely assured that that, it
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          2  was absolutely critical to the institutionalization

          3  and the creation, the development, the evolution of

          4  the After- School Corporation.

          5                 One of the successes of OST is the

          6  continued commitment of the DOE to cover these costs

          7  to CBOs at no charge. However, I think that DOE is

          8  currently focusing on OST programs. And it is very

          9  important that they continue to provide these

         10  services free of charge to programs that are not

         11  funded by OST, including ongoing TASC programs that

         12  do not get OST funding.

         13                 It is very important to bear in mind

         14  that there are hundreds of programs that do not get

         15  OST funding that have significant public funding,

         16  21st Century funding, Workforce Investment Act

         17  funding, AIDP funding, Advantage funding from OCFS,

         18  Extend a Day Violence Prevention fundings from State

         19  Ed.  These programs do not necessarily have OST

         20  funding.  They have been in the schools for several

         21  years.  Many of them actually even have, Memorandums

         22  of Understanding with the school and with the school

         23  principal.  So to some how exclude them, and say

         24  that they do not get a waiver while the others do, I

         25  do not think is a good policy.
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          2                 The Department of Education has been

          3  extremely gracious, where TASC is concerned,

          4  continues to be where OST is concerned.  And I think

          5  they ought to look beyond that.  Or the City ought

          6  to look beyond that and find the funds to make the

          7  same fee waivers available to all after- school

          8  programs.  So, thank you, and I am here for

          9  questions.

         10                 MR. BERNSTEIN:  Okay, I am Gary

         11  Bernstein, Executive Director of Wingspan Arts.  We

         12  are in our fifth year of operation providing arts

         13  enrichment programs in schools throughout New York

         14  City.  Now we are in about a dozen schools.  Some of

         15  those are now done in partnership with TASC,

         16  actually, as well as other organizations like the Y.

         17    And also we do receive some funding and

         18  participate with organizations like the Mission

         19  Society, 21st Century Program.  And I fully support

         20  what Chris has said in terms of continuing to

         21  support those programs and provide waivers.  That is

         22  very critical.

         23                 I want to speak to the more narrow

         24  issue of just simply, as a very small organization

         25  which we are, just the logistics associated in the
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          2  negotiations and monitoring of what you get charged

          3  and how you get charged for it from the Department

          4  of Ed.  The facility's people, you know, try their

          5  best I believe. However, what we have found in our

          6  four years of negotiating fee arrangements, really

          7  we have found a number of things.  And I will just

          8  sort of mention them.  The double- dipping issue is

          9  absolutely correct, it happens, simply it happens.

         10  You only discover it when you talk to your colleague

         11  CBOs and find that you all paid an opening fee.

         12                 And going back to DOE, any of the

         13  regional operations center and talking about this,

         14  does not really get you anywhere.  They just simply

         15  say yes it may have happened.  And you sort of get a

         16  vague assurance that hopefully it won't happen

         17  again. But there is no mechanism in place or system

         18  in place to make sure that that does not happen.

         19                 Custodial accountability, we know

         20  custodians work very hard.  They have certain

         21  contractual obligations.  We know in many cases

         22  custodians were in buildings where you develop

         23  relationships, go way above and beyond what is

         24  expected of them or contractually obligated.

         25  However, as a user of a building and paying for a
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          2  building after- school time, say after six o'clock,

          3  and we do that in a couple of cases, we have found

          4  that the responses from custodians, even though we

          5  are paying what we are asked to pay for the use of

          6  these buildings, varies widely from absolutely no

          7  cooperation in some cases, and us not being able to

          8  conduct our program properly.  We have kids in

          9  buildings and the school buildings are dirty.  There

         10  is maintenance going on.  There are things going on.

         11    And there is no coordination, really.  So that if,

         12  we run theater programs for example, for school kids

         13  on certain evenings and even on weekends.  And there

         14  are instances where maintenance is going on.  And we

         15  show up at a school with our 30 kids, and all of a

         16  sudden there is a jackhammer going on in another

         17  part of the building.  And we cannot conduct our

         18  program effectively.  And I think communication is a

         19  real problem that needs to be addressed.  And that

         20  is something I think DOE should work harder to do.

         21                 Payment practices is another thing.

         22  We just recently, on Friday, were informed in one

         23  case where the request, when you fill out your

         24  permits is that the payments be paid upfront.  Over

         25  the past few years, we have numerous occasions where
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          2  working through just figuring out what the payments

          3  were, in spite of our best efforts to start the

          4  process well before the program started, we almost

          5  always start our programs not quite knowing what we

          6  were going to be spending, because of unanswered

          7  phone calls, because of permits not being filled out

          8  properly, us sending them back, waiting in some

          9  cases weeks for a response to revising the permits.

         10  And ultimately, what happen was that we would never

         11  quite know, from a budgetary standpoint, in some

         12  cases what we were really going to be paying.

         13                 And fortunately, we plan carefully.

         14  And we plan with enough excess that we were able to

         15  cover costs.  Although, there were a couple of cases

         16  where we were not.  And it caused problems, and

         17  ultimately ended up in negotiations with a local DOE

         18  facility's people.  And they were usually somewhat

         19  accommodating, I would say.

         20                 The most critical thing, I think, is

         21  that you know, we are also a contractor of the DOE.

         22  We get hundreds of thousands of dollars a year for

         23  contracts, for in- school contracts.  And their rule

         24  is that they will gladly pay us after services are

         25  rendered.  And this provides huge cash flow
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          2  challenges for us.  We have, actually, even partners

          3  like TASC and others who help fund some of our

          4  programs while we wait for payment from DOE on those

          5  kinds of programs.

          6                 We got a call on Thursday or Friday,

          7  I believe, last week, informing us that going

          8  forward they would only allow us access to buildings

          9  if permits were paid completely upfront.  And I feel

         10  that for small organizations like ours, this

         11  provides a huge handicap.  Because it gives no

         12  recourse if the building is not adequately clean, if

         13  there is a dangerous situation which was not known

         14  to us regarding other uses going on in the building.

         15  Certainly, the double- dipping issue, you never

         16  quite know whether other organizations are going to

         17  be in there.

         18                 And we consider this a very obvious

         19  double standard. I would be happy to render services

         20  to the DOE if they would pay us in advance.  You

         21  know, but they are not asking that.  They asking us

         22  to pay them in advance for services and if the

         23  services are inadequate, that leaves us very little

         24  recourse because we paid our bills.  And find

         25  ourselves with children in a building, in some cases
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          2  in unsafe and unclean environments, and that is

          3  something I think that is all part of the system

          4  that really is inadequate and deficient.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER:  Thank you.  I

          6  have one question for each of you.  Mr. Bernstein,

          7  would it be helpful to you, whether some kind of Web

          8  site or available information so that you could find

          9  out what nights a DOE facility would be already

         10  open?

         11                 MR. BERNSTEIN:  Yes.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER:  So that you

         13  could plan your events around that.

         14                 MR. BERNSTEIN:  That would be

         15  something, certainly, that would be useful to us.

         16  We may at least be able to then opt to, you know, do

         17  it on those nights, or if not, you know, we could

         18  continue discussions.  But, I would say, yes, that

         19  would be something.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER:  Now, Mr.

         21  Whipple, how many TASC sites are there in the City

         22  of New York now, where the opening fees are waived?

         23                 MR. WHIPPLE:  There are approximately

         24  a hundred and- - well the opening fees are waived in

         25  all 200 sites that we support.  Now, half of those
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          2  sites, approximately half, are also OST funded

          3  sites.  So in addition to the non- OST programs, the

          4  number is about 100.  Approximately 100 non- OST

          5  funded TASC programs that enjoy the waiver of fees.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER:  Okay.  Thank

          7  you. Councilwoman, anything?  Thank you both for

          8  your testimony today. If there is anyone, we are

          9  going to wait for a moment while DYCD when this

         10  comes back on our second hearing topic.  And if

         11  there is anyone who is here to testify on Intro.

         12  737- A, please fill out a slip now.  And we are

         13  recessed for a moment or two.

         14                 (Recess taken)

         15                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER:  Coming out of

         16  recess and on our second topic.  Today, we are also

         17  discussing a bill that I am sponsoring, Proposed

         18  Intro. No. 737- A, which would create an ombudsman

         19  position within the Department of Youth and

         20  Community Development.  The idea for this

         21  legislation came from one of the numerous public

         22  hearings this Committee has held on runaway and

         23  homeless youth in New York City.  At our last

         24  hearing on this issue in September, we heard

         25  testimony from advocates who indicated that youth
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          2  are sometimes harassed, threatened, discriminated

          3  against, and even assaulted while staying in local

          4  shelters.

          5                 According to providers there are no

          6  formal procedures in place to report complaints

          7  regarding safety and rights issues in runaway and

          8  homeless youth programs and facilities.  This

          9  creates a problem.

         10                 While it appears that a number of

         11  mechanisms are in effect at both the state and city

         12  level to oversee RHY programs, none of these

         13  mechanisms appears to establish specific guidelines

         14  with respect to reporting all complaints that the

         15  proposed legislation envisions.  For example,

         16  reporting of incidents on the State Law is limited

         17  to those that render a youth an abused or neglected

         18  child.  Furthermore, although DYCD and State

         19  Monitors RHY facilities, there is no indication of

         20  the existence of a formal complaint procedure that

         21  is known and used by youth and providers.

         22                 Runaway and homeless youth are

         23  particularly vulnerable segment of our population.

         24  It is imperative that the programs that provide

         25  services to these youth do so in a safe, respectful
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          2  environment.  The proposed legislation would

          3  designate a person within DYCD, who would be

          4  responsible for ensuring that this occurs, and that

          5  a phone number would be posted at all facilities

          6  that provide shelter for runaway and homeless youth,

          7  that would be readily available to them in a time of

          8  need

          9                 For his second appearance of the day,

         10  we recall Bill Chong from DYCD.

         11                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CHONG:  Good

         12  afternoon again, Mr. Chairman.  My name is Bill

         13  Chong and I am Deputy Commissioner for Youth

         14  Services at the New York City Department of Youth

         15  and Community Development.  I am joined to my right,

         16  by Susan Haskell, Assistant Commissioner for

         17  Vulnerable and Special Needs Youth, and to my left

         18  Robyn Causey, Director of Youth Initiatives.  Thank

         19  you for the opportunity to discuss DYCD's services

         20  for runaway and homeless youth and the City

         21  Council's proposal to create an ombudsman position

         22  within the Department.

         23                 When we testified before this

         24  Committee in September, we discussed the services we

         25  offer runaway and homeless youth, the plan for a
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          2  more coordinated continuum of care model beginning

          3  in Fiscal Year 2007, and initiatives that would

          4  promote the sharing of best practices among service

          5  providers.

          6                 Today I would like to detail the many

          7  oversight responsibilities of DYCD's Division of

          8  Youth Services, as they relate to services for

          9  runaway and homeless youth.

         10                 The New York State Office of Children

         11  and Family Services, (OCFS), oversees the State's

         12  network of county Youth Bureaus.  DYCD, as the local

         13  Youth Bureau, is responsible for managing the City's

         14  Runaway and Homeless Youth Program contracts.      To

         15  strengthen our staff capacity in this area, we

         16  recently created the position of Assistant

         17  Commissioner for Vulnerable and Special Needs Youth.

         18    We have also hired Robyn Causey as the

         19  Runaway/Homeless Youth Services Coordinator as

         20  required by the Runaway/Homeless Youth Act.  In that

         21  role, she monitors the safety and quality of

         22  services provided through DYCD's RHY contracts.

         23                 Ms. Causey and her staff conduct

         24  regular program site visits that include detailed

         25  administrative, fiscal, and program reviews, such
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          2  as:

          3                 1.  Interviews with both young people

          4  and program staff at the facilities;

          5                 2.  Reviews of fiscal, program, and

          6  participant records; and

          7                 3.  Evaluations of actions taken to

          8  address findings, resolve complaints, or implement

          9  recommendations.

         10                 These on- site reviews are conducted

         11  to ensure compliance with contract terms, as well as

         12  applicable federal, state, and city statutes,

         13  regulations, and procedures.  Site visits can be

         14  announced or unannounced.

         15                 If DYCD staff make compliance

         16  findings or program recommendations, DYCD requires

         17  the provider to develop a corrective action plan and

         18  offers technical assistance to the provider to

         19  address the situation.

         20                 For example, DYCD staff worked with a

         21  provider to modify its budget to cover the cost of

         22  repairs to a broken window that was identified

         23  during a recent site visit.  In the past year, DYCD

         24  has also made joint site visits with OCFS to our

         25  service providers.
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          2                 In addition to site visits, DYCD

          3  holds mandatory monthly meetings with our providers

          4  to review programmatic and administrative issues,

          5  educate them on current regulations, and provide

          6  technical assistance or staff training.  DYCD's

          7  efforts with our service providers are aimed at

          8  ensuring that young people receive the highest

          9  quality services possible.

         10                 When our staff receive formal or

         11  informal complaints with respect to any shelter,

         12  transitional independent living program, drop- in

         13  center, or any other program receiving funding from

         14  our agency, the matter is immediately investigated

         15  by our staff.  Complaints are also reported

         16  immediately to the applicable staff, and, when

         17  appropriate, to the Commissioner.  If necessary, a

         18  corrective action plan is developed to address the

         19  problem.  The complaint and any resulting corrective

         20  action steps are documented and followed- up until

         21  the matter is resolved.  Records of complaints and

         22  corrective action plans are maintained in DYCD

         23  contractor files.

         24                 If a young person's inquiry or

         25  complaint falls outside the scope of our authority,
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          2  we refer the young person to the appropriate agency.

          3                 Young people, as well as adults, can

          4  file complaints or submit comments to DYCD by phone

          5  through the City's 3- 1- 1 system and the

          6  Department's Youthline, as well as by e- mail, or

          7  correspondence to the Commissioner or staff.  We

          8  respond to all correspondence, e- mails, calls, and

          9  complaints received directly or referred by 3- 1- 1

         10  in an appropriate and timely manner.

         11                 To ensure that young people are aware

         12  of and can reach DYCD staff, with questions and

         13  concerns, posters will be placed at all our RHY

         14  facilities to inform residents that complaints can

         15  be called into 3- 1- 1.  Also, Ms. Causey will

         16  continue her practice of disseminating her contact

         17  information to young people during field visits.

         18                 Monitoring facilities, responding to

         19  comments and complaints, and improving the overall

         20  quality of runaway and homeless youth services are

         21  the central responsibilities of our work as a

         22  contracting agency.

         23                 We welcome any additional suggestions

         24  that can enhance the quality of our program

         25  monitoring and oversight without adding
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          2  administrative responsibilities that may detract

          3  from the hands- on support given to our providers.

          4                 Thank you again for this opportunity

          5  to discuss this proposal.  We would be pleased to

          6  answer any questions or address comments that you

          7  may have.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER:  I am

          9  appreciative of the fact that DYCD has mechanisms in

         10  place to review operations at runaway and homeless

         11  youth facilities.  My question to you is, in a very

         12  practical way, a young person, a very young person

         13  who is already in a difficult, if not traumatized

         14  position.  They are outside of their home living on

         15  the street.  They come into a facility.  And they

         16  encounter a situation, maybe even at two o'clock in

         17  the morning, that is upsetting to them.  How do you

         18  expect them to communicate that complaint to DYCD?

         19                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CHONG:  We try to

         20  make it as easy as possible for them.  So a simple

         21  phone call to 3- 1- 1 gets routed to our staff.  And

         22  that complaint is investigated within 24 hours, if

         23  it is a serious enough complaint.

         24                 To have an application or form would

         25  probably make it even more of a burden to file a
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          2  complaint.  So, I will have Robyn talk about some of

          3  the complaints that she gets directly from young

          4  people that are either routed through our Youthline

          5  or directly from a young person.

          6                 But, we take complaints seriously.

          7  Whether they are not, sometimes a young person may

          8  not even want to give his/her name, and just simply

          9  some general facts about a facility.  We will

         10  investigate those.  We take every complaint

         11  seriously.  So, we try to keep it as simple as

         12  possible, so they can come forward with their

         13  concerns.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER:  Well before

         15  Robyn talks to us about some of the complaints that

         16  she has received, I am really more concerned with

         17  the ones that you do not receive.  I know when I

         18  walk into a nursing home, and in about four, or

         19  five, or six locations between the front door and

         20  the time I get up to see the person I am going to

         21  see, there is a sign that says, you know, we have a

         22  special number if you have a complaint.  And there

         23  is a special person to take care of that complaint.

         24  Don't you think that is a little bit more

         25  encouraging to somebody who has a complaint, then
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          2  say dial 3- 1- 1, which is a system that may be

          3  beyond familiarity, if nothing else, to a young

          4  person in this context?

          5                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CHONG:  Well 3-

          6  1- 1 is the central way to accessing City services.

          7  So to create a separate process might not make

          8  sense.  I mean, we are trying to, it is the most

          9  efficient way of getting services to people.  And it

         10  also allows people to track complaints.  So every

         11  complaint that we get through 3- 1- 1 is tracked.

         12  And there is a report that is submitted back to 3-

         13  1- 1 regarding disposition.  So, it is probably more

         14  efficient to have it centralized mechanism.

         15                 Three- one- one is a well- known

         16  resource to all New Yorkers.  And we think, and it

         17  is a 24- hour service.  So given the uncertain

         18  budget challenges we face in the coming year, to add

         19  additional staff to do something unique, such as

         20  having special ombudsman may not make sense.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER:  I think you

         22  misunderstand the Intro.  I do not think it is

         23  suggesting that you need to add any additional

         24  staff.  But merely, assign the responsibility to

         25  someone who is performing related functions at DYCD
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          2  already.  As you have indicated you have somebody

          3  who is performing that function.

          4                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CHONG:  Right.

          5  And Robyn when she goes- -

          6                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER:  I think what we

          7  are suggesting is that she get a title and that the

          8  phone by which to reach that office be posted in a

          9  very conspicuous way.  And then that she, as well,

         10  you know, report the nature of the complaints in

         11  some fashion to the Mayor and the Speaker on an

         12  annual basis.  So I do not think we are asking you

         13  to hire anybody additionally.

         14            And further, I am not going to debate with

         15  you the efficiency or non- efficiency of 3- 1- 1,

         16  and how well it is known, particularly to a 16-

         17  year- old who may not even be from the City of New

         18  York to begin with, who has wandered onto our

         19  streets.  Do you disagree with the premise that

         20  having a sign that offers- -

         21                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CHONG:  No.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER: - - the specific

         23  ombudsman would be a little bit more enticing to

         24  someone who has a complaint?

         25                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CHONG:  We do not
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          2  disagree with the need to publicize a number that a

          3  young person can call to complain.  The question I

          4  think is how you do it efficiently, that ensures the

          5  greatest accountability.  All calls through 3- 1- 1

          6  are tracked.  And we are required to report back to

          7  3- 1- 1 on the disposition of any call or complaint

          8  that we receive.  So there is already a built- in

          9  accountability.

         10                 For example, if we gave out Robyn's

         11  number on there, there is less of a likelihood that

         12  that will be tracked.  Whereas there is a central

         13  body that is overseeing complaints that come to our

         14  agency that we have to report to.

         15                 The other concern we have about the

         16  bill as currently constructed, is that it

         17  essentially has an inherent conflict of interest.

         18  You are asking us to monitor ourselves.  And while

         19  we are very committed to serving this population,

         20  because we agree with you that it is a very

         21  vulnerable population.  Any young person that lives

         22  in our facilities that we fund, should feel they

         23  have the right to bring forward any complaint.  In a

         24  future administration, to have the same agency

         25  responsible for monitoring it, also monitor itself,
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          2  creates certain problems for us on a more

          3  philosophical level.  Would it be better to have

          4  someone else looking over our shoulder, if that in

          5  fact is the intent?

          6                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER:  Okay, I guess I

          7  just trust you guys too much.  But that is no

          8  different than what you are telling me you have

          9  asked people to do now.  When you dial 3- 1- 1, you

         10  are routed to DYCD.

         11                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CHONG:  And those

         12  reports, you know, we can make them available at

         13  future hearings.  Whatever complaints come through

         14  to us through 3- 1- 1 or through other channels.  I

         15  mean, we allow complaints to come to us in multiple

         16  ways.  It can be an e- mail to the Commissioner, and

         17  I have gotten those forwarded to me.  And I am held

         18  accountable to making sure that those concerns are

         19  addressed.  Or it can be an anonymous letter and

         20  those have come to me as well, not just in

         21  runaway/homeless, but all of the youth service

         22  programs that are oversee.

         23                 So, we take complaints seriously, no

         24  matter what the source, no matter how detailed they

         25  are.  And we will investigate them.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER:  I do not

          3  question that you take them very seriously, I really

          4  do not.  Would you think that it would be more

          5  appropriate, if we were to pass this legislation, to

          6  place this ombudsman's office within the Public

          7  Advocate's Office of the City of New York?

          8                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CHONG:  We have

          9  not thought through that.  We know that it would

         10  pose inherent conflicts of interest for us to be

         11  monitoring ourselves, essentially.  You would be

         12  asking Robyn to monitor what she is already doing.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER:  But that is what

         14  you are doing now.

         15                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CHONG:  Right.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER:  Okay.  Council

         17  Member Arroyo.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER ARROYO:  Thank you,

         19  Mr. Chair. Monitor self, I am a product of the City

         20  system.  And one of the things that, HHC for

         21  example, does on a continual basis is monitor the

         22  agency's performance on any different level.  So I

         23  disagree with you that it is a conflict of interest

         24  for the agency to monitor its performance as it

         25  relates to handling the complaints. And this
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          2  precedence already set through other City agencies.

          3                 You get them through 3- 1- 1, through

          4  e- mail, or a call.  So how is it that you monitor

          5  the follow- up and corrective action associated with

          6  those complaints?  So you are already doing some

          7  kind of monitoring on the complaints, which is what

          8  I think we are asking.  That we know how many

          9  complaints come in, and ultimately the outcome and

         10  resolution of those complaints.  So it seems to me

         11  you are already doing that.

         12                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CHONG:  Yes, we

         13  are that is why we think the proposed program is

         14  duplicate of what we are already doing required

         15  under both state law and under contract.  So, maybe

         16  Robyn can talk about, I mean the complaints will

         17  vary.  Some are very minor and can be easily

         18  resolved.  Some do require some sort of corrective

         19  action plan, and for us to call a meeting with the

         20  providers.  So, if you allow Robyn to give you a

         21  sample of the kind of complaints we get and how she

         22  handles them, because how we handle them will vary

         23  depending upon the type of complaint.  Will that be

         24  appropriate?

         25                 MS. CAUSEY:  Good afternoon.
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          2  Basically, I receive complaints in various ways.  I

          3  can receive complaints from staff members who are

          4  working within facilities, who will call and say

          5  something did not look right, or something did not

          6  feel right, or they were talking to a young person

          7  who was living there that felt uncomfortable, and

          8  they want me to come out and speak to that person.

          9  I can get complaints from a young person themselves,

         10  because I go to the facilities on a regular basis,

         11  both announced and unannounced.  And when I am

         12  there, I always pull young people to the side and I

         13  give my cards out.  I also receive complaints

         14  through the 3- 1- 1 systems, parents call, so there

         15  are various ways that complaints come in.

         16                 Some examples of some of the

         17  complaints that I have received since I have been

         18  there in April have been, young people calling and

         19  saying things like I do not agree with my curfew.  I

         20  left home because I do not want a curfew.  And I do

         21  not think a facility should be allowed to give me

         22  one.  I have received complaints about being able to

         23  use the microwave past a certain time.

         24                 We have also thought up, through

         25  doing site visits, of addressing complaints such as
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          2  repairs, a blind, not looking like a home- like

          3  environment.  So what basically happens throughout

          4  the course of the year, I am the Director of Youth

          5  Initiatives, and I have contract managers who work

          6  under me.  And what happens is we go out, regularly

          7  scheduled, a couple of times a year.  The first time

          8  would be what we call an administrative visit.  And

          9  during that visit we are looking at their policies

         10  and procedures.  We are looking at Board minutes.

         11  We are looking at administrative files, have staff

         12  members received the appropriate trainings that are

         13  required.

         14                 Then the second time we go out during

         15  the year, we are looking at the program aspect of

         16  it.  So we go there in times where young people are

         17  actually receiving services, so they must be home

         18  when we go.  And if those visits need to be

         19  scheduled after hours, we schedule those visits

         20  after- hours.

         21                 If we go and during those two visits,

         22  and we find that everything is in compliance, and we

         23  may hold a focus group while we are there with the

         24  young people, which means that we ask young people

         25  to meet with us privately.  And I have done some of
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          2  those since I have been onboard.  And we ask the

          3  people who work in the shelters to step outside of

          4  the room.  And we ask questions during that time.

          5  How are things going?  What are some of your

          6  complaints?  Give cards out.

          7                 If both of those visits go well, then

          8  we go back and we schedule a visit with OCFS, which

          9  oversees our division.  And we go in with them.  And

         10  if there is any corrective action plan, we file that

         11  plan at that time.  If the visits go well, then we

         12  may do an unannounced visit in the year.

         13                 So, the first couple of visits we are

         14  announcing to the agency that we are coming.  We

         15  want certain records available. We want young people

         16  available.  And then the second visit we go

         17  unannounced.  And as we form corrective action

         18  plans, we can be in facilities six, seven, eight

         19  times depending on how long it takes for them to

         20  complete the corrective action plan.

         21                 So, once we find a corrective action,

         22  we send a report to OCFS.  We send a report to the

         23  Executive Director of the Agency.  We assign that to

         24  a contract manager.  I e- mail my boss, Susan

         25  Haskell, cc Bill.  He updates the Commissioner on
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          2  that.  And we track the agency until that corrective

          3  action plan has been completed.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER ARROYO:  I am not sure

          5  that that addressed the disagreement about whether

          6  you should monitor yourself or not, but.  So, you go

          7  out twice a year announced.

          8                 MS. CAUSEY:  Right.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER ARROYO:  How often

         10  unannounced?

         11                 MS. CAUSEY:  It varies.  If I am

         12  getting complaints, whether they are minor or major,

         13  I am out more often then that.  I have been employed

         14  with DYCD since April, I have conducted 27 site

         15  visits.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER ARROYO:  And how many

         17  contracts do you have?

         18                 MS. CAUSEY:  We have five TLs, one

         19  crisis.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER ARROYO:  I am sorry?

         21                 MS. CAUSEY:  Five Transitional Living

         22  Programs and one crisis facility.

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CHONG:  Six

         24  residential.

         25                 MS. CAUSEY:  Six residential
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          2  facilities.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER ARROYO:  Thank you.

          4  So, you are monitoring of corrective action plans,

          5  organizations are given a timeframe for completion?

          6  What is the timeframe?

          7                 MS. CAUSEY:  It depends on what the

          8  corrective action is.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER ARROYO:  The worst

         10  case scenario.

         11                 MS. CAUSEY:  The worst case scenario,

         12  three months, depending on what it is.  For example,

         13  if we have an agency with a corrective action for

         14  Board development, we schedule those trainings.  We

         15  train them.  It just depends on what the corrective

         16  is.  If it is a curfew issue, that is addressed

         17  immediately.

         18                 But as soon as a complaint is filed

         19  with our office, within 24 hours, I personally make

         20  a visit.  So the 27 visits that I am addressing at

         21  this point, are 27 visits that I have personally

         22  made.  It is not counting the visits that the

         23  contract managers themselves are making.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER ARROYO:  Serious

         25  complaints, a youth is charging someone of sexual
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          2  assault, or something along those lines.

          3                 MS. CAUSEY:  That would be a serious

          4  complaint.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER ARROYO:  How do you

          6  handle those?

          7                 MS. CAUSEY:  If I had a complaint

          8  that a young person was charging someone with sexual

          9  assault, immediately we would ask that young person

         10  to go to the hospital.  We would come out.  We would

         11  ask for a police report.  If they had not filed a

         12  police report, for whatever reasons, we would

         13  encourage that to be filed.  Once that had been

         14  done, I would notify both of my bosses. We would

         15  notify the Legal Department at DYCD, the Executive

         16  Director would be called in.  We would ask for the

         17  staff member to stop working at that point.  We

         18  would go in and monitor that record to make sure

         19  that the background checks have been completed for

         20  that staff member.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER ARROYO:  What is the

         22  timeframe?

         23                 MS. CAUSEY:  The staff member that is

         24  being accused of that allegation would be expected

         25  to stop going to that shelter immediately.  And I
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          2  mean from the time the call came in, immediately

          3  that staff person would be asked not to go back to

          4  work.  So, we would be out, I would be at the

          5  center, probably within a couple of hours, whatever

          6  time period it took me to get there.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER ARROYO:  Thank you.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER:  I guess and my

          9  concern is not with the job you do with the

         10  complaints you get, it is with the complaints you do

         11  not get.  And you mentioned 3- 1- 1, and I thought

         12  you used the word will, as in the future.  So you do

         13  not currently have posted in your centers, call 3-

         14  1- 1 if you have a complaint?

         15                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CHONG:  We are

         16  going to be doing that in the next week or two.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER:  Okay.  So up to

         18  now, how was a young person, I mean they have to

         19  know on their own how to get in touch with you.

         20  They have to Youthline's number and they would have

         21  to know 3- 1- 1 in order to make this complaint.

         22                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CHONG:  Or they

         23  would have gotten a card either, Robyn's card or one

         24  of the staff people's cards during a visit.  And the

         25  visits are quite often.  And we make a point of
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          2  talking to the young people separately.  Because in

          3  order for us to assess the quality of services

          4  provided at a safer facility, it is important to

          5  hear from the young people.  So we make a point of

          6  standard protocol in our site visits to talk to

          7  young people separately, to hear, so they can speak

          8  frankly if there are complaints.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER:  Well, of course,

         10  you are aware of the fact that, you know, a large

         11  number of these people transition in and out.

         12                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CHONG:  Right.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER:  I mean, I

         14  certainly appreciate your site visits.  And

         15  notwithstanding, what we do on this piece of

         16  legislation, obviously that is something that you

         17  are going to continue, and I think that is a good

         18  thing.  I just wonder, again, you know, how many

         19  people slip through cracks, and do not make a

         20  complaint because they do not have the vaguest idea

         21  how to do it, because they have not been given a

         22  card, and they do not know the phone numbers.  There

         23  is just something intuitive I have about the notion

         24  that a big sign that says, if you have got a

         25  complaint about, call 3- 1- 1, that that is just
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          2  inviting a young person into a another maze of

          3  bureaucracy that they probably are not comfortable

          4  in trusting to begin with.  That there is something

          5  a little bit more inviting about having a title and

          6  a phone number, you know, that lets them know that

          7  this person, this department, is here specifically

          8  to deal with your problem.  And I do not really

          9  sense that you that you disagree with that.  And I

         10  you know,- -

         11                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CHONG:  Anyway we

         12  have the goals, it is the question of the how,

         13  perhaps, and whether it makes sense doing what we

         14  are doing.  If posting Robyn's number will address

         15  your concern, maybe that is something we can, you

         16  know, we agree that posting the 3- 1- 1 makes the

         17  most sense, because that is where we can be held

         18  accountable.  Because at the end of the day, someone

         19  is going to be asking us, we sent you this call on

         20  this day, what did you do with it.  And so that is

         21  keeping us honest, separate and apart from what we

         22  do.  But, I hear what you are saying.  We are trying

         23  to look for the most efficient way and most

         24  effective way of addressing complaints when they do

         25  come forward. And there might be an undetermined
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          2  number, which are out there.  It is hard for us to

          3  quantify as well.  But we can only try our best to

          4  sort of educate young people.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER:  Well let me put

          6  you on the spot and ask you to make a choice.  Let's

          7  say that we were going to pass this legislation in

          8  one form or another.  And one form had the

          9  ombudsman's office created within DYCD.  We have the

         10  conflict of interest problem that you see.  Or

         11  another would that you would put it in the Public

         12  Advocate's Office, which means you would have

         13  another party that you have to deal with when these

         14  complaints came in.  And I assume that they would

         15  attempt to work cooperatively with DYCD.  Which

         16  would you rather?

         17                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CHONG:  I would

         18  have to consult with Commissioner Mulgrav on that.

         19  As it is, we get complaints from the Public Advocate

         20  anyway.  They have oversight responsibilities for

         21  city agencies.  So, I am not sure if that is more

         22  duplicative of what they already do as well.  So, I

         23  would have to check with Commissioner Mulgrav.  But

         24  as currently constructed, we think it creates a

         25  situation where we are asked to sort of police
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          2  ourselves.  And we are already policing ourselves.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER:  I agree with

          4  Council Member Arroyo, that we frequently ask city

          5  agencies to police themselves and then report back,

          6  you know, what the results are on an annual basis

          7  both to the Executive and to the Legislative Branch

          8  so that we can see what the problems are.  I would

          9  assume that within the next couple of weeks we are

         10  going to ask you to make that choice.             DEPUTY

         11  COMMISSIONER CHONG:  Right.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER:  And attempt to

         13  work together with the Administration, then we will

         14  come to really the point, because I think we do

         15  agree on the goal.  And I am not sure whether I

         16  agree with the conflict of interest argument or not.

         17  But what I really want to see happen is that there

         18  be a mechanism in place, by which a phone number

         19  that is inviting to somebody, now let's not put

         20  ourselves as the person looking at the sign, let's

         21  think of it as a runaway or a homeless child, you

         22  know a sixteen- year- old.  Are they going to look

         23  at this sign?  Is it going to be readily available

         24  to them in the short period of time when they might

         25  be feeling this complaint, as opposed to picking
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          2  themselves up and walking back out and sleeping on

          3  the street, instead of dealing with it?  How are we

          4  best going to do that, and then be able to follow-

          5  up on that compliant, and have it reported back?  I

          6  mean, to me, the most important thing is the sign,

          7  and the number, and availability of a welcoming

          8  place to call, even more so than the tracking.  You

          9  know, I want to know that a youth in crisis, who is

         10  another crisis is able to reach somebody who can

         11  help them with their new problem almost

         12  spontaneously.

         13                 Council Member, anything else?

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER ARROYO:  Absent the

         15  microwave after hours, because some things are

         16  almost no brainers.  I think the issue here is if

         17  there is a youth who is in a situation where they

         18  are threatened or feel threatened, that they can

         19  reach out and engage a mechanism where someone is

         20  going to address their concern.

         21                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CHONG:  We agree.

         22    I mean we think that mechanism is already in

         23  place.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER:  Thank you for

         25  your testimony.
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          2                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CHONG:  Thank

          3  you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER:  We only have one

          5  witness signed up.  If there is anyone else, please

          6  sign up now.  And it is James Balas from the New

          7  York City Association of Homeless Youth.

          8                 MR. BALAS:  Good afternoon.  I was

          9  hoping there would be more people.  My name is Jim

         10  Balas, I am Director of Education at the Empire

         11  State Coalition of Youth and Family Services, and I

         12  Co- Chair the New York City Association of Homeless

         13  and Street Involved Youth Organization, which is a

         14  Citywide coalition of runaway/homeless youth

         15  providers.  And I want to thank you for holding this

         16  hearing.  I want to thank for responding to this

         17  issue of disenfranchise youth, and young people

         18  needing a voice or way to make themselves heard more

         19  directly.

         20                 I have submitted some responses.  So

         21  I am going to ride on those and then I can e- mail

         22  anything else further that I talk about.  A lot of

         23  what has been said, I do not like to be redundant,

         24  unfortunately, so if I am please forgive me.  What

         25  the reality is that DYCD funds some but not all of
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          2  the Runaway/Homeless Youth Services in New York

          3  City.  So, our thinking, and this is not just mine,

          4  but our thinking is if the Office of Ombudsman is

          5  within DYCD, there might be some form of a conflict.

          6    And we actually think that putting something like

          7  this into the Office of the Public Advocate makes

          8  probably a lot more sense.

          9                 There is also, I was just informed

         10  that, I am sorry, that Barbara Clark is proposing

         11  legislation for a Statewide office of Child Advocacy

         12  or Child Advocate.  And so, by instituting something

         13  like this in the Office of Public Advocate here, we

         14  would be creating some form of a, you know, getting

         15  ahead, setting a precedent, I think, which could be

         16  beneficial.

         17                 I think that, I mean we know, and you

         18  have said, and other people in here have said, that

         19  the New York State Office of Children and Family

         20  Services, (OCFS), the bureau of compliance is

         21  already charged with monitoring all of the

         22  residential programs for homeless and runaway youth.

         23    And DYCD, obviously, is already charged with

         24  ensuring contract compliance for its funded

         25  agencies. How that is then carried out, whether
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          2  those created some sort of a poster, and whether it

          3  goes through Youthline, or whether it goes through

          4  the Office of Public Advocate, you know, yes,

          5  marketing needs to be out so that all youth, and not

          6  just the young person that comes into the shelter is

          7  aware of that.  But also the young person that goes

          8  into a drop- in center becomes aware of that as

          9  well.

         10                 The relationship, the role of the

         11  ombudsman should not be about the relationship of

         12  the youth, it should be about the relationship of

         13  the youth to the program, not about the relationship

         14  of the program to its funding source.  And I think

         15  that is our concern as well.  Therefore, the role of

         16   "program monitoring" and "contract compliance" can

         17  only serve to possibly muddy the line between the

         18  functions.

         19                 Also, it was our understanding that a

         20  lot of this issue was instituted or came about, or

         21  was the catalyst for which was the issue of the

         22  LGBTQ, Lesbian, Gay, Bisexual, Trans- gender, Youth

         23  being mistreated in certain agencies, or the

         24  potential of them being mistreated in certain

         25  agencies.  So we feel that in the writing of this
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          2  there should also be language that specifies that

          3  that it is relative to Lesbian, Gay, Bisexual,

          4  Trans- gender Youth, as well as questioning youth,

          5  and other youth who aren't.

          6                 It is also recommended that agencies

          7  be encouraged to institute a procedure, or a

          8  grievance procedure, or hand out some sort of phone

          9  number, or contact name and number of which ever,

         10  whether it is Public Advocate or DYCD, at the point

         11  of intake.  Because every agency has some form of

         12  intake, even Street Outreach has some form of

         13  intake, where the information can be dispersed that

         14  way.  And the young person can have that card at

         15  their fingertips.  Certainly, having it posted, yes,

         16  I think that is valuable.  But I think it just needs

         17  to sort of come down to who does that.  We recommend

         18  that the Office of Public Advocate, probably, seems

         19  much more applicable or appropriate in this manner.

         20                 Thank you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER:  Well thank you

         22  for your testimony and particularly for that last

         23  idea about the point of intake card.  I think that

         24  is something that we probably overlooked, that I

         25  think makes a lot of sense.  And of course, we know
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          2  that young people tend to lose things, and that is

          3  why we could have the posters up as well.  But there

          4  is no reason why the message cannot be given out

          5  effectively and cheaply in both ways. As for the

          6  LGBTQ language, it would be my hope and expectation

          7  that any sign or card that was given out indicates

          8  that complaints would include discrimination.  So,

          9  that is, you know, should be in the legislation or

         10  not, I do not know.  I mean we will take a look at

         11  the wording of that.  But I certainly think that is

         12  one of the more serious complaints that we have

         13  heard during these hearings.  And so it makes sense

         14  to me that that be part of the notice and on the

         15  sign or the card.

         16                 Councilwoman, anything?

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER ARROYO:  No.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER:  Thank you for

         19  your testimony.

         20                 MR. BALAS:  Thank you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON FIDLER:  Is there anyone

         22  else?  Seeing none, I want to thank the

         23  Administration for coming down twice, and for our

         24  witnesses today.  And I want to particularly thank

         25  Council Member Arroyo for hanging in to the end with
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          2  me, and the Committee staff, Laura Popa, Jennifer

          3  Culp, and Andy Wallace for their help on this double

          4  hearing.  And I am quite sure that we have not heard

          5  the last of both the facility's fees' issue and the

          6  ombudsman office for runaway and homeless youth.

          7                 Having said that, I hereby adjourn

          8  today's hearing.

          9                 (Hearing adjourned at 3:30 p.m.)

         10                 (The following testimony was read

         11  into the record.)

         12

         13  Testimony of:

         14  Michelle Yanche

         15  Staff Director

         16  Neighborhood Family Services Coalition

         17                 Re:  Facilities Fees for After-

         18  School Programs

         19                 Good afternoon.  I am Michelle

         20  Yanche, and I am here to testify on behalf of

         21  Neighborhood Family Services Coalition regarding the

         22  issue of Facilities fees for After- School Programs.

         23                 The Neighborhood Family Services

         24  Coalition, (NFSC), is a group of service providers

         25  and advocacy organizations that is committed to
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          2  ensuring that all young people have access to safe,

          3  structured spaces in their neighborhoods where they

          4  can participate in activities that build their

          5  skills, develop their talents, and provide them with

          6  opportunities to make positive contributions in

          7  their communities.  As part of this commitment, NFSC

          8  focuses on the network of community- based

          9  organizations that provide youth services, after-

         10  school programs, summer jobs, and year- round

         11  employment training for youth in New York City.

         12  NFSC also is a co coordinator with United

         13  Neighborhood Houses of the Campaign for Summer Jobs.

         14                 I want to begin by thanking the City

         15  Council and the Youth Services Committee, under the

         16  leadership of Chairman Lew Fidler, for holding this

         17  important hearing and for inviting me to testify.

         18                 NFSC has worked for 25 years to

         19  increase community access to public school space.

         20  In the 1980s we published a series of reports, Open

         21  the Schools for Real I, II, and III, on this issue.

         22  We have also worked consistently to bring this issue

         23  to the attention of City Administration, including

         24  the Inter Agency Coordinating Council on Youth, and

         25  Education and Youth Services Agency officials.
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          2                 Additionally, in the mid- 1990s, NFSC

          3  worked collaboratively with Child Care, Inc., to

          4  address key issues facing school- age child care and

          5  youth programs in New York City.

          6                 Through this work we identified

          7  school facilities fees as an insurmountable barrier

          8  to effective use of public school space by

          9  neighborhood programs.  In an effort to address this

         10  issue, we jointly released a Policy Alert, entitled

         11  Increasing Access to Our Public Schools, a copy of

         12  which I am submitting to the Committee today.

         13                 With more than 1,200 public schools

         14  throughout the City, every area of New York already

         15  has a facility nearby that contains a gym, library,

         16  cafeteria, auditorium, and numerous classrooms.

         17                 On school days from 8:00 a.m. to 3:00

         18  p.m., these facilities are open and full of children

         19  engaged in educational activities.  But after

         20  school, in the evenings, on weekends, and during

         21  school vacations, while thousands of children and

         22  teens walk home through dangerous streets, play in

         23  abandoned lots, or return home to unsupervised

         24  apartments, many of New York City's public school

         25  buildings are under- utilized or closed altogether.
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          2  Why is this the case when so many community

          3  organizations, parents groups, and volunteers are

          4  eager to provide safe, structured programs and

          5  activities for school- age children and youth?

          6                 The answer is simple:  School

          7  buildings are expensive to use.  New York City's

          8  contract with school custodians outlines an

          9  elaborate system of fees that are charged for use of

         10  school space during the non- school hours, placing a

         11  costly burden on groups that wish to use the

         12  schools.

         13                 Despite the fact that communities

         14  already pay with their tax dollars to build, heat,

         15  cool, clean, and maintain the public schools, the

         16  school- use fee system outlined in the custodial

         17  contract demands that they pay again to use them.

         18  Nowhere in the Country has the public paid so much

         19  to use its own schools.  Since 1975, the citizens of

         20  New York City have paid hundreds of millions of

         21  dollars to use public schools for after- school and

         22  summer programs.  Although schools are an ideal

         23  place for school- age child care and youth programs,

         24  facilities fees can absorb as much as one fourth of

         25  the total budget of a school- based program.  In one

                                                            127

          1  COMMITTEE ON YOUTH SERVICES

          2  notable instance, facilities fees for the City's

          3  nationally acclaimed Beacon Schools Initiative

          4  represent a full $4 million of the overall budget

          5  for those 80 school- based programs.

          6                 While we recognize that there are

          7  real costs associated with the after- hours use of

          8  school space, we also know that when community-

          9  based programs have to pay these costs from their

         10  operating budgets, valuable resources are directed

         11  away from vital and needed service delivery.  And as

         12  the City places more and more of an emphasis on

         13  bringing services into the schools, as it has

         14  recently with the Out- of- School Time, (OST)

         15  Initiative, we need to ask ourselves if there might

         16  be a better way to address these costs on a Citywide

         17  level.

         18                 This year, the City Council did

         19  exactly that by adding to the City budget for FY

         20  2006 a specific allocation of $4 million to cover

         21  the facilities fees for the Beacon Schools.  With

         22  this action, the City Council freed up the funding

         23  that had previously been used for this purpose to be

         24  reinvested in Beacon programming.

         25                 In order to get a clearer
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          2  understanding of the direct service impact of this

          3  change, NFSC is in the process of conducting a

          4  survey of Beacon providers to ask how this action

          5  has translated into expanded services at the program

          6  level.

          7                 Although this survey is still in

          8  progress, the following briefly summarizes some of

          9  the preliminary responses we have received.

         10                 Beacon impacts of City Council

         11  Facilities Fees allocation:

         12                 1.  An arts- dance program involving

         13  young teens;

         14                 2.  CPR, RTE, and First Aid training

         15  provided for staff;

         16                 3.  An arts component culminating in

         17  a theatrical performance which will be open to the

         18  public;

         19                 4.  The addition of educational

         20  programming;

         21                 5.  Job readiness courses;

         22                 6.  An outreach component to engage

         23  additional youth; and

         24                 7.  The addition of activities for

         25  Elementary School participants.
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          2                 Given that facilities fees are set

          3  forth in the City's contract with the School

          4  Custodian's Union, any change to the current rate

          5  system must be made through contractual

          6  negotiations.

          7                 Let me be clear that recommendations

          8  regarding any productivity or other gains to be made

          9  through labor negotiations are beyond the mission

         10  and the expertise of NFSC.

         11                 Separate from that, we urge an

         12  exploration of other ways, similar to the actions

         13  that have been taken by the City Council with the

         14  Beacons and by the Administration for the OST

         15  Initiative, to manage and pay for facilities fees

         16  centrally, rather than having these costs divert

         17  resources from programming and direct services.

         18  Priority areas for review should include:

         19                 1.  A simplification of the entire

         20  fee structure with the goal of eliminating fees from

         21  3:00 p.m. to 10:00 p.m. on weekdays and ensuring

         22  that any school- use fees charged reflect actual

         23  extra costs imposed on school maintenance by non-

         24  school time activities.

         25                 2.  An exploration of all options for

                                                            130

          1  COMMITTEE ON YOUTH SERVICES

          2  reducing summer and weekend fees for community

          3  programming.

          4                 (Hearing concluded at 3:30 p.m.)
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          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )

          7
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          9                 I, SHARON CONOVER, do hereby certify

         10  that the foregoing is a true and accurate transcript

         11  of the within proceeding.

         12                 I further certify that I am not

         13  related to any of the parties to this action by

         14  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         15  interested in the outcome of this matter.
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